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3. 9. R0 |oco hT AT quT fasht farawor TRETUT T 3T, &, Ro<oloc? I JeTcHe TIHTOT faawur Jgr—r
FHITSH TS |
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T 3aueT (7. 29.) %,0%,220 9,42, 800
faee fasmt (7. 27.) T, ok, ¥ v 4o, B3R

Y) 3T IURAINAAT BIRIA IREGT AR DY RIazem :

7o Tera favea fafreeaT sumT wemT sty S afafg wire we Al sifea samment fmior,
TAGHT HehaTTeh! TATHT UATST &bl Hiedeh! TAGHT T T &TTaR[th HUSUT e, STl aTg TguuT
Ter=sToTeRT AT ST ftheet T T &13E FmfoT @ ITMET % & T SATET HATHE a8 ¢,
2, FUSTHT ICATE TRIE0T 7T TTNUERT & | FAGTEhT VR TTLfuTeRl ATRT Sr=nferd X-ray Machinery 3eIT
¥ Sifed & | A IcdTfed fau-eshl &k T TERRT Tl 3T FadTeh caTaeenT aHd fFafia ot
wiequr TRGeRT AT faReeeRT Compressive Strength Uit T4 3== ufafere afemd sifea 2faear
e faf=eeh! FH UHT &7 T STwel Si-Tie, wrfafesh ATed ™: Yoo fwioreeremr 78 fafeeenr
TUTERRT ST TS ST TITSUaRT & | STT-ieT ScaTe ekl faliee 3o TUReaii™ ohl & | HaT 3o
TURERIAT S T Hideg, U Tl THTEehT 8 |

FOTeT et 3T STvIhetel Taiwe @ftg T fwfor i Teremr 3 71 g[oeh &awm gft favmed s
Treft, Tt T ReRERaTs faHReshT SRINT 7T afeRT T famweenT TUTEaT TRiafur ST e : foeh ST
T TR far aee afe 3 gt Sf-sriveres afedent miafiss fem wer Suertor dfedent & aThd T
TSR B | T8 ATeTs Hraier fatar fa fifq fereenis | 7@ fnfament wfafus dareme deammdete
TR faweeaRT afe=r T anfafersh T oo TeRT & |

FrOTer wfaeafy femreeht STt STHRAT §¢ ufea wemafa T o= femieent qormaT fifeemmr fasnt faawor
T TS g8, AT e @fedehl e T Hod TUS HIh{eT T SAaEATIeh Y &rHT JeTd ST91ichehl
FTEATIAGRT T T TS TRATET ST T BY | TRTEFHRT ATATHT SHET1h! el M@ T faemmT shried
ToaR FHeRietn! T8 3w Yol T A Jee- hriarg (-adT [qUHT Sf | HHareeh gia
TerehTEmT TH el 3Yah & fad & v favame faatts =merg | 1Y shH=RigeaTs arafent ST TuT
T IETEEATE 0 WicaTiad Ta 31k §e7 T qIaTsriT TS 3Ugeh atfetd, Tiereyor, M, sTeaae yeoT, Sfaammr
TEWTITAT SIS e faeis oM SmeeTs Motivation fe sries famatar feusrt & |

T FIOHIATS TafT HETeRaTe JUshd THUsh! fau T STJaR W&t &7 | New Emerging India, 3T
it YR ATTHes T T 24 June 2023 HT UAE HT STTITSHT TR International Achievers Awards -2023
HTIHTHAT OUTSTANDING INTERNATIONAL LEADERSHIP ACHIEVER AWARD — 2023, Yald ment R |
Y TR ot TETHT Mt e SAHH JEERR k033 @ Most Promising and Productive Businessman
of the year 2023 S 3= adT qL&hd ‘TF{Q?ﬁ Forar o A9TeAT HEIT Growth Leadership Academy )
Organizational Sales Excellence Award — 2023 &€ T TRUhT fas=T STHeRRT TS Ui3ar Geft arren!
| T T Y AR AN Ui SfHRdTe 3k SIS STaTE STUTd Best Management
Award -2022 GRT JTShd TTHUGhT & 9 TUTel AL, TUTeT TURE qeiT ATIdiet T, ShISHTSIENE YgTH T
TeT T STaTE 37T NS Quality Award -2019 FeIT JTERR ST GFATHG THRERT o |

&) ®dUlid! AR Yofl T fra du:
HETTeRT STTeshd gSfT €. © 3Td T SR gSfl &, 4 379 o HUS wo ARG T Tl ISl &, U 3TF o HIS o
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ATE ThHT HFIHT HTeTeh AH{AeR! TUTT STTHR I aTiieh |TRUT TTETe faRiy sedre 9T We ufs o
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SERERT AE IR Fawor T qw=Id STRY @I ol JSMgig W5 €. 4, %%, %¢,0¢,%00| HIH HEH G |

FAITRT R0<2 TS VG H-AHT FHTIH T JILEHT ITAT & ¥, ¥ < Ue, 94 2oy | A (IR fufaaw
afed) g7 YT SRR SRR TS =181 |
o) aror ufdfer

FTIhT HRIAERT AT TAT INIAEATS SATYFTHRT T TRET 3G Tosit A Thea’ @i
T SheZiohd WTHT HATETRA fafer SRIRT TREEeRT T IR STgET 81 Theoteh! 3T T FHANIGEh! &FadTar
srfgfig wd @i fifa w3

) Jodicid Afdfd I AT HEd! BIWR

BT TH TR Teh ST T~ Heleteh Higd ST & ST HeTeehat AT.d. R0clowr & fafd 06 iy
RR HT GHIT STieh HTETROT @vTeh fHufaee shaeT: off e miae, oft T aw, off Afed e, off i
TIRET T off AT TS IPHTEEeh! qhae Maitad gg WUl T &a-= dererdh qaT of 7= Hur fafat ar
f& aTaTe wAMEA g7 WUkt Rl | darerss gew off fed qrdter deTersaTe fagyusRr afsHmT deters
qfafaeRT fafd 02/ 02/ 23 T d3en! THURETE T Fa= dearee T 9= AR i fag s afsmmT
fafd R0c2/03/ 0% U THHT HaTeTh TR S3ehen! TR TASTe® go ST ST Tfiepa wudfs i
™ Wbl T Gtk UeHT ffd R0c? /0% /24 T HeTeieh Giafden! Sl fuigee oft femuft gerter
TS T fd 042/ ¢/ 0 &I TUTRIRT IRRETAT 2t SIS T[T HISHTSIATS AfohT ShIIShTeTeRT AT HeTesh
TGHT HAE TR HaTeiohaeshl 9QYe TRTEh S |

2T TR LEehT HeTeTehg®ehl TaaRuT T STTHT ekt & |

AW, I 92
CIRCRICCE HeITeTeh JTETE
ot T ATE HaTeteh T Yaw fgeTeh
off 7T TTRET CEISER ES]
RIS IR HaTeTh T
off fermoft gehrer A= G
#ft gieret er HeTeTeh Hae

) JIRIIId JRIRAdl :

HEATTT YT HTITRT hTH HIATEIT AT GIHRT TTHT eh! B Ta Hife STIET HelTeish TiaidenT e
FRATIEEE TUT FHFHIRT 3T o fHAThaTIEe TRERT TIHT HaTel TR HEITT Ga-sh! o T tay
ekl STTYFA TS dad frameiiet © | 9 Sraeh! HeTerh afbfd, T TE, JRUHIEE TTd Grut
TUhRATeATEeehT Ted HTequr qem Yaed T ged yidag Wehl T HEANTd JRIEAaTs Heaert i fafr=r
37-aftrfaes e T afhadr qdeh it THEEhT ST T & |

90) JiRARId ANSI® ITRGIRI:

JG FUHIA ATRAT U Uideh! IHEIcaelts aver T Tl yehrepT deomma amlsier 3aieTiaed
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T T TaAiem T e saE™ U qur Sfenfte e el Rovw SHifSH ST
TATRERT ¢ UiAed SUEeh! RF ARTRT &5 @ T 04 AHER SJawT SHITSHeR ArsHT
TS TR T TargmT Tmey et i A GaTiaeh HEATTT AT StaTged SFauTd wreey, fare
UHE, ST M, TS, WHAHT, fHers, ararerer @teer qur gemhvr, fefis av wefas amha
Frmia gewT MRl @ weaT T T SR O TITOAT T HTeehT AT dHd SrEThsteh et
FATTART HREE TUHT B a8 W/ Fie F==07 evmderr fafi=T wriee gures it et T 3fizer
fereenT aug ardt aifsTHeRT TSR HEANTehT TiafafmT TrerT W$ HEINTT Iuierde fatg e
RN AHHRT Wi3es! | e fenes 3= gemtehamr Tt Hiq el staeraT Ml |
qq) 3TTealR® forRIesIvT YoTedt :

TRl fHRT TEh! 70 | FHETIeT STTRAT hRIGR qIT STdeh TR0 JUTTelialTs TTaehit ST qeT
AT G TRATHTeRT Fe{aeRT AT HeTer auT Saway qeaT fafw=T afafa amaerr o=
ST YGHATT TS T ST e & | T TRk daTaiereshae fafad o17.a1.9. TRIggeRT orar
TteroT Ffafa aod T SRaTfeTeT el & | SRaTaiEvTeRT SRHT ST@UAT FHHt HASIRIgedTs TRIg g1
i gedTersh AATT quid: ST Sf | T FHFAIeT HFIHIHRT HTeieh Td TR S-TEH GedT Trelg, deeT
T HEHTETRT HRIAN TaT Gfaererichss daT T GooHT aud fa9iy e f6g shRIan 7= M &t | st=afeh
TRET TEET JUTIEAeTs TTarshit 9T &1 TR Trafusk Ufdee AThd W 9UehT GyhTaeealTs STTcaeTe
T e T Aifq fewenr St 9t sTafen TRt TuTeliers o gEd  SAated T SeTasTIaTERT 39
afafaee me T fpaiaTer Wt & |

3u Afdifdad! fdazor

&) i giteror afafa

@) HEINTA ITLETioed T ATATERUT qT |THIST G-I |idfd

TT) SRR GEEETeRT HTTer qT A SMeH 39 qiafa

) 3CATET qUT @ 37 At

¥) @itg 37 giffd

o) ol UUS Hehiew 3T HHfd

q2) 31oMdHl fEoTal JXRAD PRIAREATS 3R Ulel Adol IR HRIBT -

T AT, sifeles, Hifger ot faxfier ifq afed-are fasir g7 ge evtfaa siifawee faamirr e
ST | IS TRl ST, SR ScaTa SHTHT Hidehet ST 0 TRY T STTTefeh emreraeht i = asjwr
T HETEI T &7 T~ AT gt faveed Y | snifeies wfgent mra, wem &, fashm fior aremeft R
Terfererar @ TwEQTE fR-aRar 918y, AuTet faed wiheRTeTe ST faga STt st Ty, favareaTdt
FIUT RISAT, Ueahioh, TESIer TR Seeh! HoaHT TS Ha ARATiad Hodd (4 TaIdenT favaeardt o+
e ITEL, SATHITT B Ha THT0T hriT SRausht fafrerar TideTe a- aredfash 31X T 373 =T, “uTer T
TcaTiersh TTT faee SRRl emaTT TRl WUHT TRl etTHT SUTTeHAT dfe WUehleT femeeh
TUSHT ¥ ol Yo Tiaeqet STTTaehT SHR0T JUNTRI TTed HTKAHT TR T Torl TFITEATEITs ToIeT-aTsT T
i STaEAT & 9 T AT YT TLHRETE SIS { STIATEING F, G, ok TS a5
feremofier vey & | fa HUEEeRT ST FHFIIhT FRITREATS U+ e HEATI TaT I 9T ATHHE S |

Y I FAOTeT Sfeshes ARaTE Heyle FMURur sTRiwTeRT fofa ad sHifsroent faga gl aferuen,
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TR, I Gl 7 Aetushr T faar AreatetT faga ued af T, InInT it e, faega mirsomEme
qiferuehT &k fatent AT arfershmar st STt TR SHIfSTHeRT T facTaten! WA dlfshushl THar T
Tk TleHT QTG kRl STErEITHT i AT ST @2 UG g TR SwRitaT ® o+t SR | ufs 5T
T TesRIAT EFATI STRTAHT JeTe® T & ol T JTNTeh! [o=d ATee "ehTag LohH HHT TRURT
USTEE AT TR FenherdiaT Teg M TideRT SR ST ST WS H bl T faemm et
B | 3t Tas=mT T TR (wi=ratiggenT) fofier gala STaTerde I8 ~Iamiad ST STEeraTT 31,9,
R0¢0/0cg HT Ush SATaevh STRINT T3 T faar ymmor Sfeshes, 2o Agel Heget et 3W T e T
Tamrie wfade Uer TR el 1 Tt aua niwehent afteemET quter faega et festife fretent
TaaruT aTee faget™oT 7 THAT @1 TR ufecteR! TeE HE-aa T4 A TR MT 391 Sterard ar fe=m
AT Ycdeh JTNTRT R06R AT aig 0wl AIMEHHST &t faT aleh tatushn featiet foetnt grer
3TeerI Taverwor Y ufdee ST 7 weh Afafe T ¥ Shater TATIET TR HRiEE IE TRl STHRT TISushT
aT 3 foaTe THT g SIS TR B |

JITTHT TATIET WS HoaTe- T ohT 1ol STNTEEeh! 3cUTE &THdTehT AT ST A T8eh!, T
steare fafor g o TRATSHIEE THIHT §F0 G T8 IRIEIT T SRR asieen! faente awhenl fafartsra
oI qHT B @ TEaT SATHRET 3T U Fa FRITEHT AT Ui Tl SehTel S0 SATRAT ored Tyl
ST T JTehRT JTNT HSHTIHT A HhRICHE ST U e ST faeT §F ST & =T STTRIT TG & |

q3) G disWis e RIBIRA iR ed) Idd

FIHIT AT, Rocolocy T TN FGUMEIE 3Mfsia dfad FATHT ( Retained Earnings) 1€
IRAGHITE T3 bl Gl U 378 o HIE o AT <. 44 TTGRIdehT el g BT &. ¥R,¢,0¢,400]
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3PN TR FATEd wHEE ) anitg faaer 1 derers afafasr Tt smfem e i §

q8) GRATURIRIVIL, aRAGId < 3169 fdazor:

Roc¢? WG WHTdeh! AT, Ro<oloc? I TR/ fedre, e vare faewor, arafud srggeiee
T ETItereheh! UidaeT T8 Ufddeen! 3fehl T9uT UTEUahT & | e frdiusr gt aur fshrer fammacf
Q003 T W R%(R) HT Trafud faeror T FET U R0%3 F HT 20- (%) THINTHEHT faatuTetaTs
HTRh foraTurh! &qT EHAT F&A THTEhHT §aT A1 G TRl S | AT HFo1eh! 3edrad AT, fasht
forawor @, e T yeTEie Teeten! faerer et favaee aud a8 deterss aiafas ufdeeT ary
T QI aTeheh] WiaaeH, STaTd, 1T AT feaTd fehdTd, TTRIdqeT Trer faeiumeesre I g1 3 §
I fagame feruerr =1 |



ST
ABRID BFUll d2AT clallell Jddoeh fdazor:

() Rrad alfessox ferfdies -

foraw eifceew fafriea wiasmr yafaa fudias iy @ e waa sgeRr @isfa fag ad
AT ATE ST TEhE ATthd WL STRT T ATSHT Wohl S | 3 TgTsh hedTen! Araepd Isil & 4
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(3) 316 JAATDY YRR [RG a2AT cTarell db:

7 T ferTa AT #ff W S TefaeeanT G ahenT IR @itg T aHies fafafoesor 1
FRAehT TR TGRT & | STEHT &, R0 SHUShI THTHT THUGhT T ETeT 3th hPUH-Ieh! HEATIh I JoIuT ST
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3uferrd (2) o1 Jdafoaa

aiffe ufddce

q. Jiarcid Afdifdd! ufddae

I ITiieh gfdaeTaT T THuH B |

2. BRATRIRI®! Ufddgel

I gTiieh gfdaeTaT T THuR B |

3. AATERIgIoT Hed) fadier fdazor

I ik gfdaeTAT T TR B |

8. lojoll PRAB! Addetll fdazor

IR AXATA dT JRATDY fdFg dol &I GRR ATH] SIbRI:

()

FIOHIT SATEAT FTHRIET TH(-4d HRIAR Ik [aWamT el HEal HEATadere HUHhT
HTaa T FEioT STTeuTeRT foeg, SFa-ieT TRTTHh JRIGAIohTeRT THT HAT=Ieh ToTea TRt
TRTHQYhsg O0E T TSTed AT FHISHTS! THeT JHaa TenmT ar faweree faamufa
HT B |

T FHFIICT GIaET & ITHNT THeh! STaEAT AT Ui Sfedhde fhet aThd faeya SwiT mearr Y
Sfeshee amr faar T T ge faat St 7 T JeRITaT WA QREET T ST AR e ST
U Yo YA TNeh! EaT ST Yaeheh! T3 g ST TRITEHTATS SATHHT T ST SU=IehT
AT HehaHYR fsteatT 3TaTera @mey 3. fo. U1, ¥ R0¥o sHIfSH fhte v=r gl i fammufam et
T 9 I TS qeTa 3o STETqeTe. STRI HUGhT T Fehleg Wl THdeh! ST-aLehTich STTQeT
I TEgerT T Aife Ty Heget foaaent SramemT ST Hated STaTIqHT HTfasheh] ST Hared
JaTeqare i Rov4/06/R0 T WURT ST AT AT ford TGN JIGRRT T I1ST Fal TRehT
THAIGTHT JIash-ohT STT ST HUShT T 3= TaTeId UIeehl THiq 0% /0% /o I ST heall
RIS IS TG TR THaeTHT i SRI=ITS STt e Wuamiier e e aiia faremaferT &t
& |

et feie fasht 7 fageh Mt faater T faee @fteeral deeetel THMT TR YTHHT T
TerserT T hfe e audeT favg T STl T 5t reuret fear stereranT ke arr
TGhIAT ST TTHATHT ETes faamitaT Teeht & |

Fl T AT HeTeTeh foeg, ST STORTer TNeh! TTer-emT - YT R TRT a7 9UehT IR H
STTHERTE UTCT STURT &5 |

Horféd JRAD! IR GRIAR 20T Yalfdd) fdeeiwor

Q= SSTRAT VTR HTTTST TEAThRT AT HRIST TFEHT HGEATITRT RO -

R HRER FadiosT dreent Aifa o are e v gar aeiier faRer w fawr et gar a9
HEATRT I SR IR TTET g1 TRl B |
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() TH -
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
TO THE MEMBERS OF SHIVAM CEMENTS LTD.
REPORT ON THE AUDIT OF STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying Standalone Financial Statements of Shivam Cements Ltd. ("the Company")
which comprises the Statement of Financial Position as at Ashadh 31, 2081 (July 15, 2024), Statement of Profit or
Loss & Other Comprehensive Income, Statement of Changes in Equity & Statement of Cash Flows for the year
ended Ashadh 31, 2081 (July 15, 2024), and Notes to Financial Statement including Summary of Significant
Accounting Policies.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid
Standalone Financial Statements give a true and fair view in conformity with Nepal Financial Reporting Standards
(NFRSs), of the state of affairs of the Company as at Ashadh 31, 2081 (July 15, 2024), and its profit, total
comprehensive income, its cash flows & the changes in equity for the year ended on that date.

Basis of Opinion

We conducted our audit of the Standalone Financial Statements in accordance with the Nepal Standard on Auditing
(NSAs) & applicable law. Qur responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the Auditor’s
Responsibility for the audit of the Standalone Financial Statements section of our report.

We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of Nepal (ICAN) together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the Standalone
Financial Statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made thereunder, and we have fulfilled our
ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the ICAN's Code of Ethics.

We believe that the audit evidence obtained by us is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis of our audit
opinion on Standalone Financial Statements.

Key Audit Matters
Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of

the standalone financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit
of the standalone financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a
separate opinion on these matters. We have determined the matter described below to be the key audit matter to
be communicated in our report. '

Key Audit Matter How the matter was addressed in our audit

Useful life of Property, Plant and Equipment:

Post adoption of NFRS, the Company has changed Our principal audit procedures performed, among other

method of depreciation from Written Down Value procedures, included the following:

(WDV) method to Straight Line Method (SLM). 1. We obtained understanding of the management’s
Given the judgement used for assessing useful life processes for assessing the useful life of PPE.

and its significant impact to the Financial Statement, 2. We carried out testing of management’s control
this is a key audit matter. _.over.assessing the useful life of PPE.

3. We tested the basis of useful life.




Depreciation on Property, Plant and Equipment 4. We verified the technical evaluation done by

other than Freehold Land is provided on "Straight management while assessing the useful life of PPE.
Line Method (SLM)" based on Useful Life estimated 5. Assessed the accounting principles applied by the
by technical expert of the management. Company to estimate useful life in accordance with

the Nepal Financial Reporting Standards and
The Assets Useful Life are reviewed at the reporting ensured adequacy of disclosures.

date and the effect of any changes in estimates are
accounted for on a prospective basis.

Contingent Liabilities related to Appeals against

Assessments:

The Company is exposed to different laws, Our audit procedures included:

regulations and their interpretations thereof. In this 1. We have gained an understanding of outstanding
regulatory environment there is inherent risk of litigations against the company from the
litigations and claims. Consequently, contingent company’s in-house legal counsel and other key
liabilities disclosures may arise from Direct & managerial personnel who have knowledge of
Indirect Taxes and Other Matters (If Any). these matters.

The company applies significant judgement in 2. We have read the correspondence between the
estimating the likelihood of the future outcome in Company and the various tax authorities and the
each case and in determining the provisions or legal opinions of external legal advisors where
disclosures required. Resolution of tax and legal applicable for significant matters.

proceedings may span over multiple years due to 3. We have tested the completeness of the litigations
the highly complex nature and magnitude of the and claims by examining on a sample basis the
legal matters involved and may involve protracted Company’s legal expenses and minutes of the
litigation. Board meetings.

These estimates could change significantly over 4. We have assessed the adequacy of the Company’s
time as new facts emerge and each legal case disclosures in respect of contingent liabilities for
progresses. tax and legal matters.

Given the inherent complexity and magnitude of
potential exposures and the judgement necessary to
estimate the amount of provisions required or to
determine required disclosures this is a key audit
matter.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor's Report Thereon

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the
Directors’ report and Management Discussion and Analysis, Report on Corporate Governance and Business
Responsibility report, but does not include the Consolidated Financial Statements, Standalone Financial Statements
& our Auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the Standalone Financial Statements does not cover the other information and we do not express
any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the standalone financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the standalone
financial statements or our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or otherwise appears to be materially

i

misstated.




If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Managements Responsibility for the Standalone Financial Statements

Management is responsible for preparation and fair presentation of the Standalone Financial Statements in
accordance with the Nepal Financial Reporting Standards (NFRSs) and for such internal control as management
determines is necessary to enable the preparation of Standalone Financial Statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the Standalone Financial Statements, management is responsible for assessing its ability to continue
as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless the management either intends to liquidate or cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but
to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Company’s Financial Reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibility for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Standalone Financial Statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an Auditor’s Report that includes
our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with NSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from
fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected
to influence the economic decision of users taken on the basis of these Standalone Financial Statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with NSAs, we exercise professional judgement and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

i) Identify and assess the risk of material misstatement of the Standalone Financial Statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentation, or the override of internal controls.

ii) Obtain an understanding of Internal Control relevant to audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
Company’s Internal Control. '

iif) Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by the management.

iv) Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on
the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Company's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our Auditor’'s Report to the related disclosures in the
Standalone Financial Statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions
are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, Future events or
conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

v) Evaluate the overall presentation, structure, and content of the Standalone Financial Statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the Standalone Financial Statements represent the underlying transactions and events
in a manner that achieves fair presentation. N =y




We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

We also communicate with those charged with governance that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

Report on the Other Legal & Regulatory Requirements
i) We have obtained information and explanations asked for, which, to the best of our knowledge and belief, were

necessary for the purpose of our audit.

ii) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law relating to preparation of the aforesaid Standalone
Financial Statements have been kept so far as it appears from our examination of those books.

iii) Statement of Financial Position, Statement of Profit or Loss & Other Comprehensive Income, Statement of
Changes in Equity and Statement of Cash Flows have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of
the Companies Act, 2063 and are in agreement with the books of account of the Company.

iv) During our examination of the books of account of the Company, we have not come across the cases where the
Board of Directors or any member of there or any representative or any office holder or any employee of the
Company has acted contrary to the provisions of law or caused loss or damage to the Company, and

v) We have not come across any fraudulent activities in the books of accounts.

For, For: SUBHASH & CO.
Chartered Accountants

Place: Kathmandu
Date: 2024-12-12
UDIN: 241213CA00062azm8m

Managmg Partner
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
TO THE MEMBERS OF SHIVAM CEMENTS LTD.
REPORT ON THE AUDIT OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying Consolidated Financial Statements of Shivam Cements Ltd. ("the Parent") &
its subsidiaries, (the Parent and its subsidiaries together referred to as "the Group") which includes the Group's
share of profit in its associates, which comprises the Consolidated Statement of Financial Position as at Ashadh 31,
2081 (July 15, 2024), and the Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss & Other Comprehensive Income,
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity & Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows for the year then ended,
and Notes to Financial Statement including Summary of Significant Accounting Policies.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, and based on the
consideration of reports of the other auditors on separate financial statements of the subsidiaries and associates
referred to in the Other Matters section below, the aforesaid Consolidated Financial Statements give a true and fair
view in conformity with Nepal Financial Reporting Standards (NFRSs), of the Consolidated state of affairs of the
Group as at Ashadh 31, 2081 (July 15, 2024), and their consolidated Profit or Loss & Other Comprehensive Income,
their consolidated Cash Flows and their Consolidated Changes in Equity for the year ended on that date.

Basis of Opinion

We conducted our audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements in accordance with the Nepal Standard on
Auditing (NSAs) & applicable law. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the
Auditor’s Responsibility for the audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report.

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of Nepal (ICAN) together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the
consolidated financial statements under the provisions of the Act & the Rules made thereunder, and we have
fulfilled our ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the ICAN's Code of Ethics.

We believe that the audit evidence obtained by us is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis of our audit
opinion on Consolidated Financial Statements. '

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of
the Consolidated Financial Statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our
audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not
provide a separate opinion on these matters. We have determined the matters described below to be the key audit
matters to be communicated in our report.

Key Audit Matter How the matter was addressed in our audit

Useful life of Property, Plant and Equipment:

Post adoption of NFRS, the Group has changed Our principal audit procedures performed, among other
method of depreciation from Written Down Value procedures, included the following:
(WDV) method to Straight Line Method (SLM). 1. We obtained understanding of the management’s

Given the judgement used for assessing useful life " proces3es for assessing the useful life of PPE.
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and its significant impact to the Financial Statement,
this is a key audit matter.

Depreciation on Property, Plant and Equipment
other than Freehold Land is provided on "Straight
Line Method (SLM)" based on Useful Life estimated
by technical expert of the management.

The Assets Useful Life are reviewed at the reporting
date and the effect of any changes in estimates are
accounted for on a prospective basis.

W

We carried out testing of management’s control
over assessing the useful life of PPE.

We tested the basis of useful life.

We verified the technical evaluation done by
management while assessing the useful life of PPE.
Assessed the accounting principles applied by the
Group to estimate useful life in accordance with the
Nepal Financial Reporting Standards and ensured
adequacy of disclosures.

Contingent Liabilities related to Appeals against
Assessments:

The Group is exposed to different laws, regulations
and their interpretations thereof. In this regulatory
environment there is inherent risk of litigations and

claims. Consequently, contingent liabilities
disclosures may arise from Direct & Indirect Taxes
and Other Matters (If Any).

The Group applies significant judgement in
estimating the likelihood of the future outcome in
each case and in determining the provisions or
disclosures required. Resolution of tax and legal
proceedings may span over multiple years due to
the highly complex nature and magnitude of the
legal matters involved and may involve protracted
litigation.

These estimates could change significantly over
time as new facts emerge and each legal case
progresses.

Given the inherent complexity and magnitude of
potential exposures and the judgement necessary to
estimate the amount of provisions required or to
determine required disclosures this is a key audit
matter.

Our audit procedures included:

1.

We have gained an understanding of outstanding
litigations against the Group from the Group's in-
house legal counsel and other key managerial
personnel who have knowledge of these matters.
We have read the correspondence between the
Group and the various tax authorities and the legal
opinions of external legal advisors where
applicable for significant matters.

We have tested the completeness of the litigations
and claims by examining on a sample basis the
Group'’s legal expenses and minutes of the Board
meetings.

We have assessed the adequacy of the Group’s
disclosures in respect of contingent liabilities for
tax and legal matters.
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Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor's Report Thereon

The Parent’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the
Directors’ report and Management Discussion and Analysis, Report on Corporate Governance and Business
Responsibility report, but does not include the Consolidated Financial Statements, Standalone Financial Statements
& our Auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the Consolidated Financial Statements does not cover the other information and we do not express
any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information, compare with the Financial Statements of the subsidiaries and associates audited by the other auditors,
to the extent it relates to these entities and, in doing so, place reliance on the work of the other auditors and consider
whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the Consolidated Financial Statements or our
knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. Other
information so far as it relates to the subsidiaries and associates, is traced from their financial statements audited
by the other auditors.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Managements Responsibility for the Consolidated Financial Statements

The Parent's Board of Directors is responsible for preparation and fair presentation of the Consolidated Financial
Statements in accordance with the Nepal Financial Reporting Standards (NFRSs) and for such internal control as
management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of Consolidated Financial Statements that are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the Consolidated Financial Statements, the respective Board of Directors of the companies included
in the Group and of its associates are responsible for assessing the ability of the Group and of its associates to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern
basis of accounting unless the management either intends to liquidate or cease operations, or has no realistic
alternative but to do so.

The respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group and of its associates are also responsible
for overseeing the financial reporting process of the Group and of its associates.

Auditor’s Responsibility for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Consolidated Financial Statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an Auditor’s Report that includes
our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with NSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from
fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected
to influence the economic decision of users taken on the basis of these Consolidated Financial Statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with NSAs, we exercise professional judgement and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

i) Identify and assess the risk of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentation, or the override of interr_agl-ecmtmls\.



ii) Obtain an understanding of Internal Control relevant to audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
Company’s Internal Control.

iif) Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by the management.

iv) Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on
the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on its ability of the Group and its associates to continue as a going concern. If we conclude
that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our Auditor’s Report to the related
disclosures in the Consolidated Financial Statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report.
However, Future events or conditions may cause the Group and its associates to cease to continue as a going
concern.

v) Evaluate the overall presentation, structure, and content of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance of the Parent and such other entities included in the
consolidated financial statements of which we are the independent auditors regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also communicate with those charged with governance that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

Other Matters

In case of associate (Hongshi Shivam Cement Pvt. Ltd.), the audited financial statements as at Ashadh 31, 2081 (July
15, 2024) are audited by other auditor. Share of Profit of associates accounted for using Equity Method of NPR
112,298,881 for the year ended Ashadh 31, 2081 (July 15, 2024), has consolidated in Consolidated Financia
Statements.

Our opinion on the Consolidated Financial Statements above and our report on the Other Legal & Regulatory
Requirements below, is not modified in respect of the above matters with respect to our reliance on the work don¢
and the reports of the other auditors.

Report on the Other Legal & Regulatory Requirements

i) Wehave obtained information and explanations asked for, which, to the best of our knowledge and belief, wer
necessary for the purpose of our audit of the aforesaid consolidated financial statements.

ii) Inour opinion, proper books of account as required by law relating to preparation of the aforesaid Consolidate«
Financial Statements have been kept so far as it appears from our examination of those books and the report
of the other auditors

iii)y Consolidated Statement of Financial Position, Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss & Other Comprehensivi
Income, Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity and Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows have bees
prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act, 2063 and are in agreement with the book
of account so maintained for the purpose of preparation of the [onso!idated financial statements,

",

-

—



iv) During our examination of the books of account of the Group with reference to Other Matters so stated above,
we have not come across the cases where the Board of Directors or any member of there or any representative
or any office holder or any employee of the Group has acted contrary to the provisions of law or caused loss or
damage to the Group, and

v) We have not come across any fraudulent activities in the books of accounts.

Place: Kathmandu
Date: 2024-12-12
UDIN: 241213CA00062Ay2KK

For: SUBHASH & CO.
Chartered Accountants

CA.S.K Jhunjhunwala
Managing Partner



Statement of Financial Position

Shivam Cements Limited

As At 15th July, 2024 (Ashad 31, 2081)

Fig. in NPR
Group Shivam Cements
Particulars Notes 15thJuly, 2024  16th July, 2023 15th July, 2024  16th July, 2023
(Ashad 31,2081) (Ashad 31,2080) (Ashad 31,2081) (Ashad 31, 2080)
Assets
Non Current Assets
Property, Plant & Equipment 4 4,230,816,717 4,181,227 404 3,613,074,969 3,607,472,395
Intangible Assets 5 83,145 342,775 56,025 306,615
ROU Asset 6 3,340,209 - 3,340,209 -
Investment in Quoted shares 7 119,280,000 134,786,400 119,280,000 134,786,400
Investment in Subsidiaries 8 - - 4,585,208,800 4,262,135,800
Investment in Associates 9 4,871,566,657 4,934,275,977 - -
Deferred Tax Assets 10 - - - -
Other Non-Current Assets 11 35,796,981 35,206,317 34,464,29 34,273,632
Total Non Current Assets 9,260,883,709 9,285,838,873 8,355,424,299 B,038,974,843
Current Assets
Inventories 12 1,883,897,985 1,687,063,812 1,874,856,439 1,687,795,030
Financial Assets
Trade Receivables 13 1,100,465,868 1,423,137,978 1,126,644,809 1,422,942 847
Cash & Cash Equivalent 14 308,813,378 435,038,143 240,488,471 428,781,594
Financial Asset at amortised cost 15 603,000,000 140,000,000 200,000,000 -
Others 16 27,310,392 139,432,904 34,166,166 181,645,161
Other Current Assets 17 343,757 467 310,306,194 123,901,482 103,124,562
Income Tax Assets (Net) 27 19,707,910 - 15,396,694 -
Total Current Assets 4,288,953,001 4,134,979,030 3,615,454,260 3,824,289,194
Total Assets 13,549,836,710 13,420,817,904 11,970,878,560 11,863,264,037
Equity & Liabilities
Equity
Equity Share Capital 18 (a) 5,027,000,000 4,400,000,000 5,027,000,000 4,400,000,000
Share Application Money 958,092 - -
Other Equity 18 (b) 5,235,688,827 5,751,384,595 4,465,855,104 4,896,624, ?GD
Non-Controlling Interest 19 755,804,398 682,572,339 -
Total Equity 11,019,451,318 10,833,956,934 9,492,855,104 9,296,624,760
Non Current Liabilities
Financial Liabilities
Long Term Borrowings 20 4,710,093 7,856,771 4,710,093 7,856,771
Other Finance Liabilities 21 3,432,662 - 3,432,662 -
Provisions 22 - - - -
Deferred Tax Liabilities 10 153,879,877 112,656,624 158,457,390 119,290,720
Total Non Current Liabilities 162,022,633 120,513,395 166,600,146 127,147,491
Current Liabilities
Financial Liabilities
Trade Payables 23 1,730,928,573 1,601,941,474 1,710,448,293 1,582,336,199
Short Term Borrowings 24 68,499,786 365,105,430 68,499,736 365,105,430
Other Financial Liabilities 25 53,620,533 107,111,152 48,481,990 103,465,119
Other Current Liabilities 26 501,347,398 380,071,267 472,284,847 374,094,265
Provisions 22 13,966,470 10,022,504 11,708,394 10,022,504
Income Tax Liabilities (Net) 27 - 2,095,749 - 4,468,270
Total Current Liabilities 2,368,362,760 2,466,347,575 2,311,423,310 2,439,491,787
Total Liabilities 2,530,385,393 2,586,860,9-7'0_ 2,478,023,456 2,566,639,277
Total Equily and Liabilities 13,549,836,710 13,42(,817,904 11,970,878,560 11,863,264,037
Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 2
Accompanying Notes are an Integral Part of Financial Statements
Place: Kathmandu
Date:
o @'\ 5 Per Our Attached Repnrt of EvenD
\"‘l ' For: SUB 25 H&CO. .
Jy Tha/ Shailja Rai 7 Yhatda c:hmen-q, todntants
FO Director Tector
/
G@w £,
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ndependent Director Managing Director Chairman
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Shivam Cements Limited
Statement of Profit or Loss Income
For the Year Ended Ashadh 31, 2081 (July 15, 2024)

Fig. in NPR
. Group Shivam Cements
Particulars Notes— 8012081 207912080 208012081 207912080
Income:
Revenue From Operations 28 7,737,301,861 7,765,658,344 7,704,060,749  7,752,643,188
Cost of Sales 29 6,067,851,899  6,470,830,619 6,664,127,188  6,467,240,891
Gross Profit 1,069,449,962 1,294,827,725 1,039,933,561 1,285,402,296
Other Income 30 201,389,534 363,738,790 201,389,534 363,738,790
Expenses:
Administration Expenses 31 242,434,255 233,274,054 226,519,321 223,170,511
Selling and Distribution Expenses 32 680,342,625 678,276,347 680,342,625 678,276,347
Finance Cost 33 49,696,776 96,678,392 49,696,776 96,678,392
Total Expenses 972,473,657 1,008,228,793 956,558,723 998,125,250
Profit/(Loss) Before Tax from Continuing Operations &
Share ‘() £ Pr L: fit of Associates &LP 298,365,840 650,337,723 284,764,372 651,015,837
Share of Profit of Associates accounted for using Equity 110,712,830 9,200,282 i
Method
Profit/(Loss) Before Tax from Continuing Operations 409,078,670 659,547,005 284,764,372 651,015,837
Tax Expense
Current Tax 34 5,028,374 21,702,514 2,051,476 21,702,514
Deferred Tax 3 25,131,801 35,512,873 23,075,218 34,529,709
Net Profit/(Loss) For The Year from Continuing Operations 378,918,495 602,331,618 259,637,678 594,783,614
Discontinued Operations
Profit from Discontinued Operation Before Tax - = - =
Tax expense on Discontinued Operation - - - -
Net Profit/(Loss) For The Year 378,918,495 602,331,618 259,637,678 594,783,614
Profit for the Year attributable to:
Non Controlling Interest 31,305,059 29,909,282 =
Equity Holders 347,613,436 572,422,336 2 -
Basic Earnings Per Share (NFR) 8.03 13.01 5.50 13.52
Diluted Earnings Per Share (NPR) 6.94 w11.39 4.76 11.33
Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 2

Accompanying Notes are an Integral Part of Financial Statements

Place: Kathmandu

Date;
r
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6”' - ! For: SUBHASH & CO.
Jypti Tha (; Shailja Rai : w ?ﬂé Chartered Accountants
FO Director Direéto )
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As Per Our Attached Report of Even Date

Shi¥dmani Dhakal Raghu Nandan Maru‘ CA. S. K. Thunjhunwala
Independent Director Managing Director Chairman Partner
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Shivam Cements Limited
Statement of Other Comprehensive Income
For the Year Ended Ashadh 31, 2081 (July 15, 2024)

Fig. in NPR
. Group Shivam Cements
Particulars Notes

208012081 207912080 208012081 2079 12080
Net Profit/(Loss) For The Year 378,918,495 602,331,618 259,637,678 594,783,614
Other Comprehensive Income
Gain/ (Loss) on Investment in equity instruments measured at
fair value (15,506,400)  (34,893,600) (15,506,400) (34.893,600)
Acturial Gain/ Loss on Defined Benefit Pension Schemes - - -
Tax Relating to Components of Other Comprehensive Income 16,091,452 (5.582,976) 16,091,452 (5,582,976)
Total Other Comprehensive Income (OCI) (31,597,852)  (29,310,624) (31,597,852) (29,310,624)
Total Comprehensive Income (I'CI) 347,320,643 573,020,994 228,039,826 565,472,990
Total Income for the Year attributable to:
Non Controlling Interest 31,305,059 29,909,282 -
Equity Holders 316,015,584 543,111,712 - -

Place: Kathmandu
Date:

Shailja Rai
< Director
A [ A
It N
wromari [Phakal Ragh ndan Maru
Independent Director Managing Director

rda
irector

As Per Qur Attached Report of Even Date

[
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For: SUBHASH & CO.

Chartered Accountants

. CA, gﬁﬁ;nihunwala

" Partner



Shivam Cements Limited
Statement of Changes In Equity

For the Year Ended Ashadh 31, 2081 (July 15, 2024)

Fig. in NPR
Standalone
Particulars Sha‘re Sha:re Fair Value Reserve Revaluation Retai_ned Total
Capital Premium Reserve Earnings
Balance as on 01 | 04 | 2079 4,400,000,000 956,233,911 {42,144,123) - 3,878,110,004 9,192,199,792
. Addition In Capital
Share [ssuance Cost -
Lease Equilisation written back 1,135,843 1,135,843
Provision For CSR Written Back 1,136,135 1,136,135
Profit/ (Loss) For the Year (29,310,624) 594,783,614 565,472,990
Other Comprehensive Income for the Year -
Dividend Distribution (463,320,000} (463,320,000)
Balance as on 31 | 03| 2080 4,400,000,000 956,233,911 (71,454,747) - 4,011,845,596 9,296,624,760
Balance as on 01| 04 | 2080 4,400,000,000 956,233,911 (71,454,747) - 4,011,845596  9,296,624,760
Issue of Bonus Share Capital 627,000,000 627,000,000
Share Issuance Cost -
Provision For CSR Written Back 1,190,518 - 1,190,518
Profit/(Loss) For the Year 259,637,678 259,637,678
Other Comprehensive Income for the Year (31,597,852) (31,597,852)
Dividend Distribution (660,000,000) (660,000,000)
+ Balance as on 3103|2081 5,027,000,000 956,233,911 {101,862,081) - 3,611,483,274 9,492,855,104

Place: Kathmandu
Date:

,As Per Our Attached Report of Even Date
For: SUBHASH & CO.
harda Chartered Accountants

Director L
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Shailja Rai
’ Director
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d@i’-n iromani Dhakal Raghu Nandan Maru v-Goel CA.S5. K. Jhunjhanwala
Independent Director Managing Director Chairman " Partner



Shivam Cements Limited
Statement of Changes In Equity
For the Year Ended Ashadh 31, 2081 (July 15, 2024)

Fig. in NPR
Consolidated
Group
Attributable to Equity Share holders of Shivam Cements
z Share Share " Revaluation Retained Now:
Particulars Capital Premium Fair Value Reserve Reserve Famings Controlling Total
Interest
Balance as on 01 |04 | 2079 4,400,000,000 956,233,911 (42,144,123) - 5,061,324,918 652,663,057 11,028,077,763
Addition In Capital 53,906,200 53,906,200
Share Issuance Cost -
Lease Equilisation written back 1,135,843 1,135,843
Provision For CSR Written Back 1,136,135 1,136,135
Excess of Purchase Consideration
over Net Assets Acquired =
Profit/ (Loss) For the Year (29,310,624) 372,422,336 29,909,282 573,020,994
Other Comprehensive Income for the Year -
Dividend Distribution (769,413,800) (53,906,200) {823,320,000)
Excess Depreciation written back 2
Balance as on 31|03 2080 4,400,000,000 956,233,911 (71,454,747) - 4,866,605,431 682,572,339 10,833,956,934
Balance as on 01 | 04 | 2080 4,400,000,000 956,233,911 (71,454,747) - 4,866,605,431 682,572,339 10,833,956,934
Addition In Capital 627,000,000 41,927,000 668,927,000
Provision For CSR Written Back 1,190,518 1,190,518
Adjustment of Reserve 1,498,130 1,498,130
Profit/ (Loss) For the Year (31,597,852) 347,613,436 31,305,059 347,320,643
Dividend Distribution (834,400,000) = (834,400,000)
Balance as on 31| 03] 2081 5,027,000,000 956,233,911 (103,052,599) - 4,382,507,515 755,804,398 11,018,493,226

Place: Kathmandu

Date:
v—-[ e ﬁl
Jy iThV Shailaja Rai
(8] Director

&J }’h ﬁa*' 7

iromani kal Raghu Nandan Maru
Independent Director Managing Director

As Per Our Attached Report of Even Date
_~For: SUBHASH & CO.
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Shivam Cements Limited
Statement of Cash Flow
For the Year Ended Ashadh 31, 2081 (July 15, 2024)
Fig. in NPR

. Group Shivam Cements
Particulars
2080 12081 2079 1 2080 20801 2081 2079 1 2080
Profit/ (Loss) For the Year 378,918,495 602,331,618 259,637,678 594,783,614
Adjustment of Non Cash Charges
Depreciation on Property, Plant & Equipment 132,741,449 137,939,605 131,133,348 134,584,154
Amoritzation of Intangible Assets 259,630 259,630 250,590 250,590
Amoritzation of ROU Assets 6,404,410 - 6,404,410 -
Profit/ (Loss) on Sale of PPE (9,053,025) (8,891,817) (9,053,025) (8,891,817)
Interest Income (8,863,249) (1,334,918) (8,863,249) (1,334,918)
Dividend Income (148,285,432) (314,605,800) (148,285,432) (314,605,800)
Interest Cost 49,696,776 96,678,392 49,696,776 96,678,392
Deferred Tax 23,131,801 35,512,873 23,075,218 34,529,709
Current Tax 5,028,374 21,702,514 2,051,478 21,702,514
Cash Flow Before Working Capital Change 431,979,230 569,592,098 306,047,791 557,696,440
Changes In Working Capital
Decrease/ (Increase) In Inventory (196,834,173) 851,937,071 (187,061,409) 852,655,364
Decrease/ (Increase) In Trade Receivables 322,672,109 222,924,521 296,298,038 222,924,521
Decrease/ (Increase) In Other Financial Assets 112,122,512 (119,193,427) 147,478,995 (161,403,684)
Decrease/ (Increase) In Other Assets (34,041,937) (151,237,747) (20,967,584) 61,571,332
Increase/ (Decrease) In Sundry Creditors 128,987,099 (47,798,750} 128,112,094 (204,495,123}
Increase/ (Decrease) In Financial Liablities (53,490,619) (65.334,419) (51,550,467) (65,438,034)
Increase/ (Decrease) In Other Liablities 108,236,471 (57,916,5435) 81,718,260 (51,959,935)
Increase/ (Decrease) In Provisions 6,632,614 6,575,918 2,876,408 6,575,918
394,284,077 639,956,621 396,904,335 660,428,365
Cash G ted From Operati 826,263,307 1,209,548,720 702,952,126 1,218,124, 805
Income Tax Paid (26,832,033) (32,855,556) (21,916,639) (30,903,283)
Met Cash Flow From Operating Activities [1] 799,431,274 1,176,643,164 681,035,487 1,187,221,522
Cash Flow From Investing Activities
Acquisitions of Property, Plant & Equipments (206,031,960) (122,525,325) (160,437.119) (90,138,667)
Proceeds From Sale of Property, Plant & Equipments 32,754,223 16,176,167 32,754,223 9,208,547
Acquisitions of Intangible Assets - (43,200) - -
ROU Assets (9,744,619) (9,744,619)
Investment in Quoted Shares - (7,280,000) - (7,280,000)
Income from Investment 148,285,432 314,603,800 148,285,432 314,605,800
Investment in Subsidiaries - - (323,073,000) (306,093,800)
Investment in Associates 62,709,321 179,079,011 - -
Decrease / (Increase) in Investment in Fixed Deposit (465,000,000) (140,000,000) (200,000,000) -
I Income 8,863,249 1,334,918 8,863,249 1,334,918
Total Cash Flow From Investing Activities [2] (428,164,355) 241,345,371 (503,351,834) (78,363,203)
Cash Flow From Financing Activities
Repayment of Long Term Borrowings (3,898,174) (4,150,076) (3,898,174.09) (4,150,076.28)
Changes in Short-term Borrowings (295,854,147) (244,581,506) (295,854,147) (244,581,506)
Interest Cost (49,696,776) (96,678,392) (49,696,776) (96,678,292)
Issue of Bonus Share 627,000,000 - 627,000,000 -
Increase in Share Application Money 958,092 -
Changes in NCI 41,927,000 53,906,200 - -
Dividend Distribution = (B17,927,678) (798,118,678) (643,527 678) (438,118,678)
Total Cash Flow From Financing Activities [3] (497,491,683) {1,089,622,453) (365,976,775) (783,528,653)
Net Increasef(Decrease) In Cash & Cash Equivalents [1+2+3] (126,224, 764) 328,416,082 {188,293,123) 325,329,667
Cash & Cash Equivalents At Beginning of The Year/Period 435,038,143 106,622,061 428,781,594 103,451,927
Cash & Cash Equivalents At End of The Year/Period 308,813,379 435,038,143 240,488,471 425,761,594
Components of Cash & Cash Equivalenls
Cash In Hand 1,416,014 650,232 1,391,147 615,365
Balance With Banks 307,397,365 434,387,911 239,097,324 428,166,229

Motes:
Cash Flow Statement has been prepared using Indirect Method In Accordance with N
The Accompanying Notes are an Integral Part of Financial Statements

7 |Statement of Cash Flows]

As Per Our Attached Report of Even Date
. For: bUBHASH—& Co.
Shailja Rai Chartcrcd Arcuunt.mtq
Director
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Shivam Cements Limited
For the Year Ended Ashadh 31, 2081 (July 15, 2024)
Significant Information, Accounting Policies & Notes to the Accounts

1 General Information
Shivam Cements Limited (Herein after referred to as The Company') is a Public Limited Company domiciled in Nepal registered
under the Company Act, 2053 of Nepal. The manufacturing unit is located at Hetauda - 16, Makwanpur with its registered
corporate office at Siddhartha Insurance Bhawan, 2nd Floor, Anamnagar, Kathmandu. The Company was registered as a private
limited company on Jestha 13, 2060 which later on changed to Public Limited Company from Shrawan 8, 2072 & currently is an
listed entity at Nepal Stock Exchange.

With a vision to expand and grow, the company took initiative for the first FDI in Cement industry and invited Hongshi Group of
China and started a new company over 70% and 30% stake between Hongshi Cements China and Shivam Holding Private limited
(Subsidiary of Shivam Cements Limited) to form a new Joint Venture company as Hongshi Shivam Cement Private Limited with its
production capacity of 6,000 TPD Cement & Clinker each. This plant has already come in operation in year 2018 and is situated in
Sardi, Nawalparasi.

The Company was established with the vision to produce & provide quality OPC cement in the Nepalese market which was
sustaining over imported cement from neighboring countries. The Company took the initiatives to explore Nepalese limestone
potential to manufacture quality cement. It started with Ordinary Portland Cement (OPC) 43 Grade Cement & subsequently added
OPC 53 Grade Cement. Currently, it is producing 3,000 TPD cement & 1,900 TPD clinker from The Company’s self-owned
limestone quarries,

2 Basis of Preparation
(a

Statement of Compliance

The Financial Statements have been prepared in accordance with the Nepal Financial Reporting Standards (NFRS) issued by the
Nepal Accounting Standards Board (NASB), as per the provisions of The Institute of Chartered Accountants of Nepal Act, 1997.
These confirm, in material respect, to NFRS as issued by the Nepal Accounting Standards Board. The Financial Statements have
been prepared on a going concern basis. The term NFRS, includes all the standards and the related interpretations which are

consistently used.

—

Basis of Measurement
The Financial Statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except for certain Financial Assets & Liabilities which have
been measured at Fair Value amount:

(b,

—

Historical cost is generally Fair Value of the consideration given in exchange for goods & services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market
participants at the measurement date, regardless of whether that price is directly observable or estimated using another valuation
technique. In estimating the Fair Value of an Asset or a Liability, the Company takes into account the characteristics of the Asset or
Liability if markel participants would take those characteristics into account when pricing the Asset or Liability at the measurement
date. Fair Value for measurement and/ or disclosure purposes in these Financial Statements is determined on such a basis, except
for, measurements that have some similarities to Fair Value but are not Fair Value, such as Net Realizable Value in NAS 2
“Inventories” or Value in use in NAS 36 “Impairment of Assets”.

In addition, for Financial Reporting purposes, Fair Value measurements are categorized into Level 1, or 2, or 3 based on the degree
to which the inputs to the Fair Value measurements are observable & the significance of the inputs to the Fair Value measurement
in its entirety, which are described as follows:

¢ Level 1 - Inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical Assets or Liabilities that the entity can access at the
measurement date;
* Level 2 - Inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included within Level 1, that are observable for the Asset or Liability, either
directly or indirectly; and
* Level 3 - Inputs are unobservable inputs for the Asset or Liability.
(c) Use of Estimates
The preparation of these Financial Statements in conformity with NFRS requires management to make estimates, judgements and
assumptions, These estimates, judgments and assumptions affect the reported balances of Assets & Liabilities, disclosures relating
to Contingent Liabilities as at the date of the Financial Statements and the reported amounts of Income & Expenses for the years
presented. Actual results may differ from these estimates. Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ofigoing basis..
Changes in estimates are reflected in the Financial Statements in the period in which changes are made and, if nlate?ﬁal,- their effects
are disclosed in the Notes to the financial statements. Ki \

h
(d Mandy | v 1

—_—

Going Concern

T_h:e Financial Statements are prepared on a going concern basis. The Board of Directors have considered a ‘wide rilnge',g{;t'_’_/
/Information relating to present and future conditions, including future projections of profitability, cash flows and capital resourégs”
{'while assessing the going concern basis. Furthermore, Board is not aware of any material uncertainties that may cast significant

' doubt upon Company’s ability to continue as a going concern and they do not intend either to liquidate or to cease operations of it.



Shivam Cements Limited

For the Year Ended Ashadh 31, 2081 (July 15, 2024)
Significant Information, Accounting Policies & Notes to the Accounts

(e) Functional and Presentation Currency
These Financial Statements are presented in Nepalese Rupees (NPR) which is the Company’s functional currency. All financial
information presented in NPR has been rounded to the nearest rupee except where indicated otherwise.

(f) Changes in Accounting Policies
Accounting policies are the specific principles, bases, conventions, rules and practices applied by the Company in preparing and
presenting financial statements. The Company is permitted to change an accounting policy only if the change is required by a
standard or interpretation; or results in the Financial Statements providing reliable and more relevant information about the effects
of transactions, other events or conditions on the entity's financial position, financial performance, or cash flows.

3 Significant Accounting Policies

(a) Property, Plant & Equipment & Depreciation
i) Recognition
Freehold land is carried at historical cost and other items of property, plant and equipment are stated at cost of acquisition or
construction less accumulated depreciation when, it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to
the Company and it can be used for more than one year and the cost can be measured reliably.

—

Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it meets
the recognition criteria as mentioned above. The carrying amount of any component accounted for as a separate asset is
derecognised when replaced. All other repairs and maintenance are charged Lo statement of profit or loss during the reporting
period in which they are incurred.

On transition to NFRS, the Company has elected to continue with the carrying value of all of its Property, Plant & Equipment
recognized as at 1st Shrawan, 2074 (July 16, 2017) measured as per the Previous Local GAAP & have disclosed its Gross Acquisition
Value along with Accumulated Deprecialion separately.

ii) Depreciation

Depreciation on Property, Plant and Equipment other than Freehold Land is provided on "Straight Line Method (SLM)" based on
Useful Life estimated by technical expert of the management.

The Assets Useful Life are reviewed at the reporting date and the effect of any changes in estimates are accounted for on a

Useful Life of Property, Plant and Equipment based on SLM is categorised as stated below:

List of Asset Categories Life of

Assels

Computer & Accessories 3 Years
Office Equipment 5 Years
Other Assets 5 Years
Furniture & Fixture 10 Years
Vehicles 8 Years
Heavy Equipments 12 Years
Plant & Machinery 35 Years
Mines Development 30 Years
Building 50 Years

iii) Derecognition .

An item of Property, Plant & Equipment is derecognized upon disposal or when no Future Economic Benefits are expected to arise
from the continued use of the Asset. Any Gain or Loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of Property, Plant &
Equipment is determined as the difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the Asset and is recognized in
the Statement of Profit & Loss.

iv) Impairment of Assets

The Company assesses at each reporting date as to whether there is any indication that Property, Plant & Equipment may be
impaired. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of an asset is estimated to determine the extent of impairment, if
any. An impairment loss is recognised in the Statement of Profit & Loss to the extent, assel's carrying amount exceeds its
recoverable amount.

Here the recoverable amount is higher of an asset's fair value less cost of disposal & value in use. Whereas Value in use is Lased on
the estimated future cash flows, discounted to their present valie using pre-tax discount rate that reflects 1,t'ur fit market \
assessments of the time value of money and risk specific to the assets. { APk,

1 iL¥ o
v) Capital Work-In-Progress At ks
These are expenses of capital nature directly incurred in the construction of buildings and major plant and machinery which a-re/ 150
be capitalized. Capital Work in Progress would be transferred to the relevant asset when it is available for use. Capital. ekt
Progress is stated at cost less any accumulated impairmént losses.
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Shivam Cements Limited

For the Year Ended Ashadh 31, 2081 (July 15, 2024)
Significant Information, Accounting Policies & Notes to the Accounts

(b) Intangible Assets
i) Recognition
Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. Following initial recognition, intangible assets are
carried at cost less any accumulated amortization and any accumulated impairment losses. Internally generated intangibles,
excluding capitalized development costs are not capitalized and the related expenditure is reflected in Statement of profit or loss in
the year in which the expenditure is incurred.

Subsequent expenditure on intangible assets is capitalized only when it increases the future economic benefits embodied in the
specific asset to which it relates. All other expenditure is reflected in Statement of profit & loss in the year in which the expenditure
is incurred.

ii) Amortization

The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed to be either finite or indefinite. An intangible asset shall be regarded as having an
indefinite useful life when, based on an analysis of all of the relevant factors, there is no foreseeable limit to the period over which
the asset is expected generate net cash inflow for the entity.

Amortization is recognised in Statement of Profit & Loss on straight line method (SLM) over the estimated useful life of the
‘intangible assets from the date that it is available for use since this most closely reflects the expected pattern of consumption of the
future economic benefits embodied in the asset. The amortization period and the amortization method for an intangible asset with a
finite useful life are reviewed at least at each financial year end. Changes in the expected useful life or the expected pattern of
consumption of future economic benefits embodied in the asset are considered to modify the amortisation period or method, as
appropriate, and are treated as changes in accounting estimates. The amortisation expense on intangible assets with finite lives is
recognised in the Statement of Profit & Loss.

Useful Life of Intangible Assets based on SLM is categorised as stated below:

List of Asset Categories I:::;i
Softwares/ Application 5

iii) Derecognition

An Intangible Asset is derecognised when no Future Economic Benefits are expected to arise from the continued use of the Asset.
Any Gain or Loss arising on the derecognition is determined as the difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount
of the Asset and is recognized in the Statement of Profit & Loss.

iv) Impairment of Assets

The Company assesses at each reporting date as to whether there is any indication that Intangible Asset may be impaired. If any
such indication exists, the recoverable amount of an asset is estimated to determine the extent of impairment, if any. An impairment
loss is recognised in the Statement of Profit & Loss to the extent, asset's carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount.

Here the recoverable amount is higher of an asset's fair value less cost of disposal & value in use. Whereas Value in use is based on
the estimated future cash flows, discounted to their present value using pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the ime value of money and risk specific to the assets.

(c) Cash & Cash Equivalent

For the purpose of presentation in the Statement of Cash Flows, Cash & Cash Equivalents includes Cash In Hand, Bank Balances &
Positive Balance of Cash Credit Accounts.

(d) Financial Assets
i) Initial Recognition & Measurement
Financial Assets are recognized when, and only when, the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the /I‘jngmi@[_
Instrument, The Company determines the classification of its Financial Assets at initial recognition. 8% e

n] N\,

When Financial Assets are recognized initially, they are measured at Fair Value, plus, in the case of Financial Ass ts tzitq‘;at Fair \-,_
value through Profit or Loss", transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisation of the Financial Asset. Trandaction of !
Financial Assets carried "at Fair Value through Profit or Loss" are expensed in the Statement of Profit & Loss. “t \ 0, Fi
ii} Subsequent Measurement NZ .‘3(‘@/
a) Financial Assets carried at Amortized Cost (AC) Sl

A Financial Asset is measured at amortized cost if it is held within a business model whose objective is to hold the asset in order to
collect contractual cash flows and the contractual terms of the Financial Asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are
solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding. Interest income from these financial assets is
measured using effective interest rate method. C)

ad# -
,‘ f///‘v/ &
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Shivam Cements Limited
For the Year Ended Ashadh 31, 2081 (July 15, 2024)
Significant Information, Accounting Palicies & Notes to the Accounts

b) Financial Assets at Fair Value through Other Comprehensive Income (FVTOCI)

A Financial Asset is measured at FVTOCI if it is held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting
contractual cash flows and selling Financial Assets and the contractual terms of the Financial Asset give rise on specified dates to
cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding. These financial assets are
measured at fair value and changes are taken to statement of other comprehensive income.

¢) Financial Assets at Fair Value through Profit or Loss (FVTPL)

A Financial Asset which is not classified in any of the above categories are measured at FVTPL. These financial assets are measured
at fair value and changes are taken to statement of profit or loss.

iii) De-Recognition

A Financial Asset is derecognized only when the Company has transferred the rights to receive cash flows from the Financial Asset.
Where the Company has transferred an Asset, the Company evaluates whether it has transferred substantially all risks and rewards
of ownership of the Financial Asset. In such cases, the Financial Asset is derecognized. Where the Company has not transferred
substantially all risks and rewards of ownership of the Financial Asset, the Financial Asset is not derecognized. Where the
Company retains control of the Financial Asset, the Asset is continued to be recognized to the extent of continuing involvement in
the Financial Asset.

iv) Impairment of Financial Assets

The Company assesses at each reporting date whether there is objective evidence thata financial asset or group of financial assets is
impaired. A financial asset or a group of financial assets is deemed to be impaired if, there is objective evidence of impairment as a
result of one or more events that has occurred since the initial recognition of the asset (an incurred ‘loss event’) and that loss event
has an impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset or the group of financial assets that can be reliably estimated.
Evidence of impairment may include indications that a financial asset or a group of financial assets is experiencing significant
financial difficulty, default or delinquency in interest or principal payments, the probability that they will enter bankruptcy or other
financial reorganization and observable data indicating that there is a measurable decrease in the estimated future cash flows, such
as changes in arrears or economic conditions that correlate with defaults.

(e) Financial Liabilities
i) Initial Recognition & Measurement
Financial Liabilities are recognized when, and only when, the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
Financial Instrument. The Company determines the classification of its Financial Liabilities at initial recognition.
All Financial Liabilities are recognized initially at Fair Value, plus, in the case of Financial Liabilities not at fair value through profit
or loss, transaction costs that are attributable to the issue of the Financial Liability.

ii) Subsequent Measurement
After initial recognition, Financial Liabilities are subsequently measured at amortized cost.

For trade and other payables maturing within one year from the date of Statement of Financial Position, the carrying amounts
approximate Fair value due to short maturity of these instruments.

iii) De-Recognition .

A Financial Liability is de-recognized when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires. When an existing
Financial Liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, ot the terms of an existing liability
are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as a de-recognition of the original liability and the
recognition of a new liability, and the difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognized in the Statement of Profit or Loss.

-

(f) Offsetting financial instruments
Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the statement of financial position where there is legally
enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis or realise the asset and settle the
liability simultaneously. The legally enforceable right must not be contingent on future events and must be enforceable in the
normal course of business and in the event of default, insolvency or bankruptcy of the Company or the counterparty.

(g) Inventories
Inventories are initialy recognized at cost, and subsequently at the lower of cost and net realizable value. Net realizable value is the
estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated cost of completion and the estimated costs necessary to
make the sale.
- "'_'"“--.___\
The cost is determined on weighted average method and includes expenditure 'in'curr't-d in ac‘q:\iir'mg the inventories and bringing
them to their present location and condition. In the case of manufactured/inventories and work in progress, cost includes an

appropriate share of overheads based on normal operating capacity. i LKah‘ga nd Q
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Shivam Cements Limited
For the Year Ended Ashadh 31, 2081 (July 15, 2024)
Significant Information, Accounting Policies & Notes to the Accounts

(h) Share Capital
Financial Instruments issued by the Company are classified as Equity only to the extent that they do not meet the definition of a
Financial Liability or Financial Asset.

(i) Reserves & Funds
i) Share Premium: Securities premium reserve is used to record the premium on issue of shares (Net off Share issuance cost).
ii) Retained Earnings: Retained earnings includes the accumulated Profit & Loss and amount retained by Company atter
distribution of dividends.
jii)Dividend Distribution: Company had distributed stock dividend @14.25% as per the decision of Annual General Meeting held
on Poush 27, 2080 (total dividend of Rs.660,000,000 including cash dividend for FY 2080-81).

(j) Borrowings
Borrowings are initially recognised at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently measured at
amortised cost. Any differences between the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption amount is recognised in
Statement of Profit & Loss over the period of the borrowings using the effective interest method. Borrowings are derecognized from
the Statement of Financial Position when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged, cancelled or expired.

(k) Provisions, Contingent Liabilities & Contingent Assets
(i) Provisions
Provisions are recognized when the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events, for which it is
probable that an outflow of resources embadying economic benefits will be required to seftle the obligation and a reliable estimate
of the amount can be made.

Provisions are measured at the present value of management’s best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the present
obligation at the end of the reporting period. The discount rate to determine the present value is a Pre-Tax Rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the liability. The increase in the provision due to the passage
of time is recognized as interest expense.

(ii) Contingent Liabilities

Contingent liabilities are recognized only when there is a possible obligation arising from past events due to occurrence or non-
occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Company or where any present obligation
cannot be measured in terms of future outflow of resources or where a reliable estimate of the obligation cannot be made.

Obligations are assessed on an ongoing basis and only those having a largely probable outflow of resources are provided for.

(iii) Contingent Assets
Contingent assets where it is probable that future economic benefits will flow to the Company are not recognized but disclosed in
the Financial Statements.

() Employee Benefits
i) Short Term Obligations
Liabilities for wages and salaries, including non-monetary benefits that are expected to be settied wholly within 12 months after the
end of the period in which the employees render the related service are recognized in respect of employees’ services up to the end
of the reporting period and are measured at the amounts expected to be paid when the liabilities are settled. The liabilities are
presented as current employee benefit obligations in the Statement of Financial Position.

- Leave Encashment %
Leave related payables are settled every-year by the Company, hence, Company doesn't have long term leave encashments.
Accordingly, actuarial valuation for leave encashment has not been carried out.

ii) Post - Employment Benefits

- Defined Contribution Plan

The Company pays Provident Fund contributions to publicly administered Provident Funds as per local regulations. The Company
has no further payment obligations once the contributions have been paid. The contributions are accounted for as defined
contribution plans and the contribution are recognized as Employee Benefit Expense when they are due. TG

-~

”.
As per Section 53 of Labor Act, 2074, with effect from Bhadra 19, 2074 (September 04, 2017), Gratuity shall Ve tréated as defined
contribution plan to be calculated at 8.33% of Basic Salary Per Month, based on that Actuarial Valuation hds n n carried out.

All the contributions related to Provident Fund, Gratuity & Social Security has been duly made to publ : f
Security Fund as per local regulation starting from Tst of Shrawan, 2076. ~—ACTH @
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Shivam Cements Limited
For the Year Ended Ashadh 31, 2081 (July 15, 2024)

Significant Information, Accounting Policies & Notes to the Accounts

- Defined Benefit Plan

For Defined Benefit Plan, the cost of providing benefits is determined using the Projected Unit Credit Method, with Actuarial
Valuations being carried out at each Statement of Financial Position. Actuarial Gains & Losses are recognized in the Other
Comprehensive Income in the period in which they occur. Past service cost is recognized immediately to the extent that the benefits
are already vested and otherwise is amortized on a Straight Line Basis over the average period until the benefits become vested.
The retirement benefit obligation recognized in the Statement of Financial Position represents the present value of the defined
benefit obligation as adjusted for unrecognized past service cost, as reduced by the Fair Value of plan Assets (If Any). Any Asset
resulting from this calculation is limited to past service cost, plus the present value of available refunds and reductions in future
contributions to the plan.

() Revenue Recognition:

(n)

()

(®)

Revenue is recognized to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the company and the revenue and
associated costs incurred or to be incurred can be reliably measured. Revenue is measured at fair value of the consideration
received or receivable net of Value Added Tax & Excise Duty.

Revenue is recognized upon transfer of ownership of goods to the customers, provided pervasive evidence of an arrangement exists
whereby collectability of revenue is reasonably certain and no performance revenue from sales of goods or rendering of services is
net of indirect taxes, returns & discounts.

i) Revenue from Sale of Goods

Revenue from sale of goods are recognized when the signifianct risks and rewards of ownership have been transferred to the
Customers. Revenue is measured at the value of the consideration received or receivable, net of excise, trade discounts if any &
Value Added Tax.

Leases

Long Term Leases

Leases in which the Company has substantial portion of the risks and rewards of ownership are classified as Long Term Leases.
Assets acquired under Long Term Leases are capitalised at the lower of the Fair Value of the Leased Assets at the inception of the
Lease Term & the Present Value of Minimum Lease Payments. Lease Payments are apportioned between the Fnance charge and the
reduction of the outstanding liability. The Fnance Charge is allocated to periods during the Lease Term at a constant periodic Rate
of Interest on the remaining balance of the liability.

Short Term Lease

Leases in which the Company doesn’t have substantial portion of the risks and rewards of ownership are classified as Operating
Leases. Payment made under Operating Leases are charged to Statement of Profit & Loss on a Straight Line Basis.

Borrowing Costs

Borrowing costs directly atfributable to the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying assets, which are assets that
necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale, are added to the cost of those assets, until
such time as the assets are substantially ready for their intended use or sale.

Interest income earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is
deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalization.

All other borrowing costs are recognized in Profit & Loss in the period in which they are incurred.

Income Taxes

[ncome Tax Expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable & Deferred Tax.

i) Current Tax

Current Tax Expenses are accounted in the same period to which the revenue and expenses relate. Provision for Current Income
Tax is made for the Tax Liability payable on Taxable Income after considering tax allowances, deductions and exemptions
determined in accordance with the applicable tax rates and the prevailing tax laws. @
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Shivam Cements Limited
For the Year Ended Ashadh 31, 2081 (July 15, 2024)
Significant Information, Accounting Policies & Notes to the Accounts

i) Deferred Tax

Deferred Tax is recognized on Temporary differences between the carrying amounts of Assets & Liabilities. Deferred Tax is
recognized using the Statement of Financial Position and its Tax Base. Deferred Tax Assets & Liabilities are recognized for
deductible and taxable temporary differences arising between the tax base of Assets & Liabilities and their carrying amount in
Financial Statements, except when the Deferred Tax arises from the initial recognition of goodwill, an Asset or Liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination and affects neither accounting nor taxable Profits or Loss at the time of the transaction.

Deferred Tax Assets are recognized to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible
Temporary differences and the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilized.

Deferred Tax Liabilities are generally recognized for all taxable Temporary differences.

The carrying amount of Deferred Tax Assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the Deferred Tax Asset to be utilized.

Cash Flow Statement

Cash Flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby Net Profit Before Tax is adjusted for the effects of transactions of a non-
cash nature and any deferrals of accruals of past or future cash receipts or payments.

Functional Currency & Foreign Currency Transactions

The Financial Statements of the Company are presented in Nepalese Rupees, which is the Company’s Functional Currency. In
preparing the Financial Statements of the Company, transactions in currencies other than the Company’s Functional Currency i.e.
Foreign Currencies are recognized at the rates of exchange prevailing at the dates of the transactions.

Earnings Per Share

Earning per share is calculated by dividing the profit attributable to owners of the company by the Weighted Average Number of
equity shares outstanding during the Financial Year.

Operating Segment

Operating Segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating decision maker
(CODM) as defined by NFRS 8, “Operating Segment”.

Company’s Income & Expenses including interest are considered as part of un-allocable Income & Expenses which are not
identifiable to any business segment. Company’s Asset & Liabilities are considered as part of un-allocable Assels & Liabilities which

are not identifiable to any business.

Company predominantly operates in the business of sale of cements and doesn't have major reportable segment.
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Shivam Cements Limited Standalone
For the Year Ended Ashadh 31, 2081 (July 15, 2024)
5. Intangible Assets

Accounting Syneérgy HR TMS HR & Project Cost Mobile

Software-SMS Customisation Module Module New Application Tukal

Categories

Gross Block
As on Shrawan, 2079 90,000 75,000 500,000 126,517 350,000 1,182,131 2,323,648
Addition During the Year - - - - - = -
Acquisition - - = - =
Capitalization .
Disposal During the Year »
Adjustment/Revaluation -
Balance as on Ashad End 2080 90,000 75,000 500,000 126,517 350,000 1,182,131 2,323,648

Amortisation & Impairment

As on Shrawan, 2079 90,000 75,000 500,000 126,517 350,000 624,926 1,766,442
Amortisation Charge For the Year 250,390 250,590
Impairment For the Year -
Disposals -
Adjustment -
As on Ashad End 2080 90,000 75,000 500,000 126,517 350,000 875,516 2,017,033
Capital WIP - 32|03 | 2079 =
Capital WIP - 3103|2080 -

Net Book Value
As on Ashad End 2079 - - 0 0 - 557,205 557,206
As on Ashad End 2080 = a 0 0 5 306,615 306,615
i I HR & j i Tot:
Gl Sottweetiis bty Mol B yeniin At ks da
Gross Block
As on Shrawan, 2080 90,000 75,000 500,000 126,517 350,000 1,182,131 2,323,648
Addition During the Year a -
Acquisition -
Capitalization -
Disposal During the Year -
Adjustment/ Revaluation -
Balance as on Ashad End 2081 90,000 75,000 500,000 126,517 350,000 1,182,131 2,323,648
Amortisation & Impairment
As on Shrawan, 2080 90,000 ’?3,[](10 500,000 126,517 350,000 875,516 2,017,033
Amortisation Charge For the Year 250,590 250,590
Impairment For the Year -
Disposals -
Adjustment -
As on Ashad End 2081 90,000 75,000 500,000 126,517 350,000 1,126,106 mzkzsf 623
Capital WIP - 31|03 | 2080 N
Capital WIP - 31|03 ]2081 4%
o, 1)
Net Book Value ’O’o /' J
As on Ashad End 2080 » = 0.33 0.00 . 615
As on Ashad End 2081~ - - 0.33 0.00 - 56, 025‘\—13? 56,025

@ c=
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Shivam Cements Limited Consolidated
For the Year Ended Ashadh 31, 2081 (July 15, 2024)
5. Intangible Assets
i R roject Cost  Mobi
Categories S‘:fcl:r):r:t-g‘l;gds Cuft}:::gﬁun Ml::lu]e M8 Imh:::)gu‘::e New App(l)iti::ilteion Toml
Gross Block
As on Shrawan, 2079 90,000 75,000 500,000 126,517 350,000 1,182,131 2,323,648
Addition During the Year 45,200 - - - - - 45,200
Acquisition 45,200 - - - - 45,200
Capitalization - - - - - -
Disposal During the Year - - - - - -
Adjustment/Revaluation = - - - - - -
Balance as on Ashad End 2080 135,200 75,000 500,000 126,517 350,000 1,182,131 2,368,848
Amortisation & Impairment
As on Shrawan, 2078 90,000 75,000 500,000 126,517 350,000 624,926 1,766,442
Amortisation Charge For the Year 9,040 - - - - 250,590 259,630
Impairment For the Year -
Disposals -
Adjustment -
As on Ashad End 2080 99,040 75,000 500,000 126,517 350,000 875,516 2,026,073
Capital WIP - 32|03 2079 - - - X = s
Capital WIP - 31|03 | 2080 - - - - - - =
Net Book Value
As on Ashad End 2079 A - 0 - 557,205 557,206
As on Ashad End 2080 36,160 - 0 - 306,615 342,775
i j ) Mobile
Categories S:fi::r):l:tlsnfds Cugg.]:;sg::ion Nl?:l:le ™S thi:]glil:ge?ﬂ App‘l]i?:atiun As::fia:ind
Gross Block
As on Shrawan, 2080 135,200 75,000 500,000 126,517 350,000 1,182,131 2,368,848
Addition During the Year - 2 - = = - -
Acquisition - - - - - -
Capitalization - - - - - - -
Disposal During the Year - - - - - - -
Adjustment/ Revaluation - - - - - - -
Balance as on Ashad End 2081 135,200 75,000 500,000 126,517 350,000 1,182,131 2,368,548
Amortisation & Impairment
As on Shrawan, 2080 99,040 75,000 500,000 126,517 350,000 875,516 2,026,073
Amortisation Charge For the Year 9,040 . - - = 250,590 259,630
Impairment For the Year -
Disposals -
.Adjustment -
As on Ashad End 2081 108,080 75,000 500,000 126,517 350,000 1,126,106 2,285,703
Capital WIP - 3103 | 2080 - S = : - '/".’-_‘.H‘\
Capital WIP - 31|03 | 2081 - - 5 . . 4 T
I @ '
Net Book Value 3,‘1 l i@‘ \
As on Ashad End 2080 36,160 : 0 0 o 306815 1&,}75 /
As on Ashad End 2081 27,120 - 0 - SG:G@M
c2
@ - | \-—t]; (}LL/ \ﬁ\



Shivam Cements Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Year Ended Ashadh 31, 2081 (July 15, 2024)

7.1

7.2

Right of Use Asset

Fig. in NPR

Group

Shivam Cements

15th July, 2024 16th July, 2023

15th July, 2024 16th July, 2023

Futiculars (Ashad 31,2081) (Ashad 31, 2080) (Ashad 31,2081)  (Ashad 31, 2080)
ROU Assel 3,340,209 - 3,340,209 =
Total 3,340,209 - 3,340,209 -
Investment in Quoted Shares ed at FVTOCI Group Shivam Cements
- 15th July, 2024 16th July, 2023 15th July, 2024 16th July, 2023
Katar (Ashad 31, 2081) (Ashad 31, 2080) (Ashad 31,2081)  (Ashad 31, 2080)
Investment in Equity Shares of
Prabhu Bank Ltd - 11,20,000 unit Promoter Shares 119,280,000 134,786,400 119,280,000 134,786,400
Total 119,280,000 134,786,400 119,280,000 134,786,400
Investment in Quoted Shares measured at cost Group Shivam Cements
i e 15th July, 2024  16th July, 2023 15th July, 2024 16th July, 2023
A (Ashad 31,2081) (Ashad 31, 2080) (Ashad 31,2081)  (Ashad 31, 2080)

Investment in Equity Shares of

Prabhu Bank Ltd - 11,20,000 unit Promoter Shares 219,851,575 219,851,575 219,851,575 219,851,575
Total 219,851,575 219,851,575 219,851,575 219,851,575
Fair Value Changes Transferred to OCI Group Shivam Cements
Particulars 15th July, 2024 16th July, 2023 15th July, 2024 16th July, 2023
(Ashad 31, 2081) (Ashad 31, 2080} (Ashad 31, 2081) (Ashad 31, 2080)
Investment in Equity Shares of
Prabhu Bank Ltd - 11,20,000 unit Promoter Shares (15,506,400) (34,893,600) (15,506,400) {34,893,600)
Total (15,506,400) (34,893,600) (15,506,400) (34,893,600)
Investment in Subsidiaries Group Shivam Cements
St 15th July, 2024 16th July, 2023 15th July, 2024 16th July, 2023
= (Ashad 31, 2081) (Ashad 31, 2080) (Ashad 31,2081)  (Ashad 31, 2080)
Investment in Equity Shares of
Shivam Holding Pvt. Ltd. - 39,452,088 Shares @ NPR.100 - - 3,945,208,800 3,707,135,800
S.C.L. Investment Pvt. Ltd. - 8,100,000 Shares @ NPR.79.01 - - 640,000,000 555,000,000
Total = - 4,585,208,800 4,262,135,800

@_




Shivam Cements Limited
Motes to the Financial Statements
For the Year Ended Ashadh 31, 2081 (July 15, 2024}

11

12

Investment in Associates Group Shivam Cements
— 15th July, 2024 16th July, 2023 15th July, 2024 16th July, 2023
. (Ashad 31,2081)  (Ashad 31,2080)  (Ashad 31,2081) (Ashad 31, 2080)
Investment in Equity Shares of
Hongshi Shivam Cement Pvt. Ltd. 4,834,227 693 4,921,998,812 - -
Dhading Cement Pvt. Ltd, 37,338,963.25 12,277,165 - -
Total 4,871,566,657 4,934,275,977 - -
Deferred Tax Assets/ (Liabilities) Group Shivam Cements
iy 15thJuly, 2024 16th July, 2023 15th July, 2024 16th July, 2023
(Ashad 31, 2081)  (Ashad 31, 2050) {Ashad 31, 2081) (Ashad 31, 2080)
Deferred Tax Asset/(Liability)
Property, Plant & Equipment (170,786,289) (138,170,791) (170,053,598) {137,854,605)
Provision For Gratuity 109.064 215,952 109,064 215,952
Provision For Doubtful Debts 8,531,692 4,426,043 8,531,692 4,426,043
Lease Liability (549,226) = (549,226) ~
ROU Assets 534,434 = 534,434
Changes in OH Companent Inclusion in Cost of Conversion (974,303) (740,685) (873,449) (740,683)
Provision For CSR 1,024,745 1,052,147 460,226 1,052,147
Carried Forward of Losses 10,711,030 6,950,282 5,864,491 +
Investment in Equity (2,481,024) 13,610,428 (2,481,024) 13,610,428
Total (153,879,877) {112,656,624) (158,457,390) (119,290,720)
Particulars
16th July, 2022 (Ashad 32, 2079) (82,726,727) (90,343,957)
(Charged),/Credited to Statement of Profit & Loss {35,512,873) (34,529,709)
(Charged)/Credited to Other Comprehensive Income 5,582,976 5,582,976
16th July, 2023 (Ashad 31, 2080) (112,656,624) (119,290,720}
(Charged)/Credited to Statement of Profit & Loss {25,131,801) (23,075,218)
(Charged)/ Credited to Other Comprehensive Income (16,091,452) (16,091,452)
15th July, 2024 (Ashad 31, 2081) (153,879,677) (158,457,390)
Other Non Current Assets Group Shivam Cements
— 15th July, 2024 16th July, 2023 15th July, 2024 16th July, 2023
(Ashad 31, 2081)  (Ashad 31, 2080) (Ashad 31, 2081) (Ashad 31, 2080)
Capital Advances 1,737 857 1,737 857 1,737 857 1,737 857
Advances other than Capital Advances
Deposit Against Appeal 28,469,247 28,195,293 28,469,247 28,195,293
Custom Deposit 369,063 459,852 369,063 456,852
Cther Deposits 5,220,815 4,813,315 3,888,130 3,880,630
Total 35,796,981 35,206,317 34,464,296 34,273,632
Inventories Group Shivam Cements
Particulars 15th July, 2024 16th July, 2023 15th July, 2024 16th July, 2023
(Ashad 31, 2081)  (Ashad 31, 2080) (Ashad 31, 2081} (Ashad 31, 2080)
Raw Materials 685,466,394 826,953,048 687,845,461 827,684,266
Power & Fuel 487,816,020 230,813,035 487,572,978 230,813,035
Tacking Material 24,387,212 16,417,523 24,387,212 16,417,523
Semi Finished Goods 7,470,715 5,520,080 7AT0,715 5,520,080
Finished Goods 238,131,504 184,882,029 226,954,333 184,882,029
Stores and Spares 440,625,740 422,478,097 440,625,740 422 478,097 /"’-"_""
Total 1,583,897,985 1,687,063,812 1,874,856,439 1,687,795,030 — \-{\
Trade Receivables Group Shivam Cementis fhl f )
Particulars 15th July, 2024 16th July, 2023 15th July, 2024 16th July, %—‘ %O-
(Ashad 31,2081)  (Ashad 31,2080)  (Ashad 31,2081) (Ashad 31, ‘\_O/ o
Trade Receivables From Related Parties 27028479 4,516,282 27,028,479 4,51 0,28‘!%"}9
Trade Receivables From Other Parties 1,126,760,462 1,446,284,469 1,152,939,403 1,446,089,339
Provision for limpairment of Irade Receivables (53,323,072) (27,662,774) (53,323,072) (27,662.774)
‘Total 1,100,465,668 1,423,137,978 1,126,644,809 1,422,942,547
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Shivam Cements Limited
Noles to the Financial Statements
For the Year Ended Ashadh 31, 2081 (July 15, 2024)

14 Cash & Cash Equivalent Group Shivam Cements
Partieabins 15th July, 2024  16th July, 2023 15th July, 2024 16t July, 2023
(Ashad 31,2081)  (Ashad 31,2080)  (Ashad 31,2081) (Ashad 31, 2080)
Cash In Hand 1,391,147 650,232 1,137,400 361,618
Cash In Hand - Foreign Currency 24,867 - 253,747 253,747
Balance With Banks
Agricultural Development Bank Ltd. 4,481,018 5,000 4,481,018 5,000
Agricultural Development Bank Lid. -Call Account - 4,791,895 - 4,791,895
Barik of Kathmandu Lid. 348,503 186,632 348,505 186,632
Bank of Kalhmandu Ltd. - Hetauda 6,563 6,563 6,563 6,563
Century Commercial Bank Lid. 9,717 656 16,641,000 9,717,656 16,641,000
Citizen Bank International Ltd. 5198477 5,951 5198477 -
Everest Bank Ltd. 25471473 32,989,680 25461419 32,979,626
Global Ime Bank Ltd.- Call Account 49,100 45,402,933 49,100 45,402,933
Global Ime Bank Ltd. 20,564,841 29,149 20,535,692 -
Himalayan Bank Ltd. 277,650 - 254,411 .
Himalayan Bank Ltd. - Tandi - 37,040 - -
Himalayan Bank Ltd. Lalitpur 5,951 17,375 - -
Kumari Bank Ltd. 21,569,641 16,895,351 21,544,071 16,872,112
Laxmi Bank Ltd. 9,257,549 3,571,767 9,228,704 3,571,767
Machhapuchchhre Bank Ltd. 6,963,073 6,963,073 -
Mega Bank Nepal Ltd. 2,403,467 1,177,660 2,403,467 1,177,660
Nee Bank Ltd. 221,329 2,621,134 221,329 2621134
Nepal Bangladesh Bank Ltd. 1,538 512,353 1,538 512,353
Nepal Bank Ltd. 38,505,082 10,108,907 38,505,082 10,108,907
Nepal SBI Bank Ltd. 836,304 12,373,096 836,304 12,373,096
Nepal In Bank Ltd. - Hi d. 6,121 8,821 6,121 8,821
NIC Asia Bank Ltd. 20,805,381 13,080,725 20,805,381 13,080,725
NMB Bank Ltd. 20,565,668 27,919,299 20,565,668 27,919,299
Prime Commercial Bank Ltd. 7,610,267 53,525,643 7,610,267 53,525,643
Rastriya Banijya Bank Ltd. 14,693,684 17,128,516 14,693,684 17,128,516
Rastriya Banijya Bank Ltd. OD AC 2,840,185 - - =
Sanima Bank Ltd. 8,417,005 1,000 B417,005 1,000
Sanima Bank Ltd. OD AC 2,741 - 2,741 -
Sanima Bank Ltd. | Call Account 64,035,855 43,049,351 - 43,049,351
Siddhartha Bank Ltd. - Hetauda 6,275 3,529,957 6,275 6,275
Siddhartha Bank Ltd. - Call Account - 16,733,589 - 16,733,589
Siddhartha Bank Ltd., OD AC 13,199,325 50,000 13,199,325 50,000
Standard Chartered Bank Ltd. 13,313 3,410 1,041 3410
Sunrise Bank Ltd. 3,966,204 9,592,743 2,683,254 9,580,472
Nabil Bank Ltd. - 2,556,951 - -
Nabil Bank Ltd. | OD 8,756 93,858,759 8,756
Nepal Investment Bank Ltd. |OD 5,326,888 5,887,705 5,320,918
Prabhu Bank Ltd. - 5,970 -
NIBL Credit Card - Foreign Currency - 62,614 =
Dollar Card (Icard) ¥ 20,480 19,373 20,480
Total 308,813,378 435,038,143 240,488,471

15 Financial Asset at amortised Cost Group Shivam Cemen r:‘_\_—'///

*
15th July, 2024 16th July, 2023 15th July, 2024 16th ]u!?,@ﬁﬂla“"g

Particulars (Ashad 31,2081)  (Ashad 31, 2080) (Ashad 31, 2081}  (Ashad 31, 2080)
Siddhartha Bank Ltd. ((FD with Maturity below & months)) 405,000,000 140,000,000 - -
NIC Asia Bank Ltd. ((FD with Maturity for 6 months)) 200,000,000 200,000,000 .
Total 605,000,000 140,000,000 200,000,000 -

i T
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Shivam Cements Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Year Ended Ashadh 31, 2081 (July 15, 2024)

Other Financial Assets Group Shivam Cements
Particulars 15th July, 2024 16th July, 2023 15th July, 2024 16th July, 2023
(Ashad 31, 2081)  (Ashad 31, 2080) (Ashad 31,2081) (Ashad 31, 2080)
Current
Bank Guarantee Margin 4,568,636 4,606,262 4,568,636 4,606,262
Letter of Credit Margin 910,349 4,296,877 910,349 4,296,877
Deposit Against Letter of Credit 11,527,393 103,650,765 11,527,393 103,650,765
Advance for share purchase 10,304,014 26,879,000 17,159,788 69,091,257
Tatal 27,310,392 135,432,904 34,166,166 181,645,161
Other Current Assets Group Shivam Cements
" 15th July, 2024 16th July, 2023 15th July, 2024 16th July, 2023
(Ashad 31,2081)  (Ashad 31,2080)  (Ashad 31,2081) (Ashad 31, 2080)
Prepaid Expenses 3,727,920 21,809,866 3,710,751 21,809,866
Pre IPQ Expenses 585,700 : s
Advance for Expenses 233,358 28,952 233,358 610,396
Aduvance to Suppliers
To Related Parties 12,001,514 4,154,585 29,325,291 16,168,099
To Others 72,752,764 76,012,833 55,172,977 61,909,635
Advance Against Staff & Labors 914,374 2,626,546 914,374 2,626,546
Interest Receivable 2,332,531 - - -
Other Receivables 211,163,629 200,870,030 2
VAT Receivable 40,045,676 4,003,382 34,544,731
Total 343,757 467 310,306,194 123,901,482 103,124,562
Equity Share Capital Group Shivam Cements
Particulars 15th July, 2024 16th July, 2023 15th July, 2024 16th July, 2023
{Ashad 31, 2081)  (Ashad 31, 2080) (Ashad 31,2081)  (Ashad 31, 2080)
Authorised Capital:
70,000,000 Ordinary Shares of NPR 100 Each. 7,000,000,000 7.000,000,000 7,000,000,000 7,000,000,000
Issued Capital:
50,270,000 Ordinary Shares of NFR 100 Each. 5,027,000,000 5,027,000,000
50,000,000 Ordinary Shares of NFR 100 Fach. 5,000,000,000 5,000,000,000
Paid Up Capital:
50,270,000 Ordinary Shares of NPR 100 Each. 5,027,000,000 5,027,000,000
44,000,000 Ordinary Shares of NPR 100 Each. 4,400,000,000 4,400,000,000
Total 5,027,000,000 4,400,000,000 5,027,000,000 4,400,000,000
Other Equity
Share Premium Group Shivam Cements
Pasticulars 15th July, 2024 16th July, 2023 15th July, 2024 16th July, 2023
(Ashad 31,2081}  (Ashad 31, 2080) {Ashad 31,2081) (Ashad 31, 2080)
Share Premium
Balance at the Beginning of the Year 956,233,911 956,233,911 955,233,911 956,233,911
(+) Increase due to issue of share at premium = = = B
(-) Share Issuance Cost = 5 = -
Balance at the End of the Year 956,233,911 956,233,911 956,233,911 956,233,911

tlr-Tc
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Shivam Cements Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Year Ended Ashadh 31, 2081 (July 15, 2024)

Reserve & Surplus Group Shivam Cements
T 15th July, 2024 16th July, 2023 15th July, 2024 16th July, 2023
(Ashad 31,2081)  (Ashad 31, 2080) {Ashad 31, 2081) (Ashad 31, 2080)
Retained Earnings
Balance at the Beginning of the Year 4,866,605,431 5,061,324,918 4,011,845,596 3,878,110,004
(+) Adjustment Opening Reserve & Surplus 1,498,130 - -
4,868,103,561 5,061,324,918 4,011,845,596 3,878,110,004
(+) Profit For the Year 347,613,436 572422.3% 259,637,678 594,783,614
(+) Lease Equalization written back - 1,135,843 - 1,135,843
Available For Distribution 5,215,716,997 5,634,883,096 4,271,483,274 4,474,029 461
(-} Dividend Distribution (834,400,000) (769,413,800) (660,000,000) (463,320,000)
{+) Provision for CSR Written Back 1,190,518 1,136,135 1,190,518.09 1,136,135
Balance at the End of the Year 4,382,507,515 4,866,605,431 3,612,673,792 4,011,845,596
Fair Value Reserve Group Shivam Cements
Pldticaiat 15th July, 2024 16th July, 2023 15th July, 2024 16th July, 2023
(Ashad 31, 2061)  (Ashad 31, 2080) (Ashad 31, 2081)  (Ashad 31, 2080)
Balance at the Beginning of the Year (71,454,747) (42,144,123) (71,454,747) (42,144,123)
{+) Other Comprehensive Income (31,597,852) (29,310,624} (31,597,852) (29,310,624)
Balance at the End of the Year (103,052,599) (71,454,747) (103,052,599) (71,454,747}
Grand Balance at the End of the Year 5,235,688,827 5,751,384,595 4,465,855,104 4,696,624,760
Non-Controlling Interest Group Shivam Cements
Particulars 15th July, 2024 16th July, 2023 15th July, 2024 16th July, 2023
(Ashad 31, 2081)  (Ashad 31, 2080) (Ashad 31, 2081)  (Ashad 31, 2080)
NCI in Share Capital 697,291,200 £55,364,200 = -
NCI in Share Application Money .
NCI in Opening Retained Earnings 27208139 (2,701,143) - -
Total Comprehensive Income Allocated to NCI for the Year 31,305,059 29,909,252 ~
Total 755,804,398 682,572,339 - -
Long Term Borrowings Group Shivam Cements
Particulars 15th July, 2024 16th July, 2023 15th July, 2024 16th July, 2023
(Ashad 31,2081) (Ashad 31, 2080) {Ashad 31, 2081) (Ashad 31, 2080)
Hire Purchase Loan
Bank of Kathmandu Ltd. |HP 7,716,081 11,614,255 7.716,081 11,614,255
{-) HP Loan Current Portion (3,005,987) (3,757 484) (3,005,987) (3,757 484)
Total 4,710,093 7,856,771 4,710,093 7,856,771
Other Financial Liabilities Group Shivam Cements
Piiiling 15th July, 2024 16th July, 2023 15th July, 2024 16th July, 2023
(Ashad 31,2081)  (Ashad 31, 2080) (Ashad 31, 2081) (Ashad 31, 2080)
Lease Liability 3,432,662 3,432,662 -
Total 3,432,662 - 3,432,662 -
Provisions e Group Shivam Cements
— e R
Non - Current " \ A
Provision For Leave Encashment - - = @4} \ 1\
Provision For Gratuily . : : B ’é, 1S
Non Current Provisions - - . \& E\J /el
Current 4
Provision For Corporate Social Responsibility 13,966,470 10,022,504 11,708,394 7~ »rntgfy
Provision For Leave Encast 13 - - - -
Current Provisions 13,966,470 10,022,504 11,708,393 10,022,504
(a) Disclosure under NAS 37 "Provisions, Contingent Liabilities & Contingent Assets”
Group Shivam Cements R%\
Description 15th July, 2024 16th July, 2023 15th July, 2024 16th July, 2023
(Ashad 31, 2081)  (Ashad 31, 2080) (Ashad 31, 2081)  (Ashad 31, 2080)
Provision For Corporate Social Responsibility
Opening | 10,022,504 4,582,721 10,022,504 4,582,721 ir/f?/
Additions During the Year 5134484 6,375,918 2,876,408 6,575,918
Utilised During the Year (1,190,518) (1,136,135) (1,150,518) (1,136,135) It
Closing - 4 13,966,470 4 . 10,022.504 11,708,394 10,022,504 )
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Shivam Cements Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Year Ended Ashadh 31, 2081 {July 15, 2024)

Trade Payable Group Shivam Cements
Particulars 15th July, 2024 16th July, 2023 15th July, 2024 16th July, 2023
(Ashad 31, 2081)  (Ashad 31, 2080) (Ashad 31,2081) (Ashad 31, 2080)
Trade Payable From Related Parties 134,257,529 66,373,887 134,257,529 66,373,887
Trade Payable From Others 1,596,671,044 1,535,567,587 1,576,190,764 1,515,962,313
Total 1,730,928,573 1,601,941,474 1,710,448,293 1,582,336,199
Short Term Borrowings Group Shivam Cements
Particiilass 15th July, 2024 16th July, 2023 15th July, 2024 16th July, 2023
(Ashad 31,2081)  (Ashad 31,2080)  (Ashad 31,2081) (Ashad 31, 2080)
Secured
Overdraft Loan
Nabil Bank Lid. - Ktm |OD 1,697,322 - 1,697,322 -
Nepal Bank Ltd. |OD 43,117,237 351,347,946 43,117,237 361,347,945
Cash Credit
Cash Credit Nabil Bank 20,679,240 20,679,240.00
Current Maturity of LTL 3,005,987 3,757,484 3,005,987 3,757,484
Total 8,499,786 365,105,430 68,499,786 365,105,430
Other Current Financial Liabilities Croup Shivam Cements
Particulars 15th July, 2024 16th July, 2023 15th July, 2024 16th July, 2023
(Ashad 31, 2081)  (Ashad 31, 2080) (Ashad 31, 2081} (Ashad 31, 2080)
Employee Related Payable
Bonus Payable - 14,006,643 - 14,006,643
Other Employee Related Payable
Salaries and Wages Payable 35,592,583 32,596,616 33,996,457 32,493,001
Leave Encashment Payable 6,878,343 6,878,343
Staff Deposit Fayable 10,938,971 14,339,502 10,938,971 14,339,502
Other Payable 5,138,812 37,057,804 1,596,394 33,515,386
Gratuity Payable 234,590 463,752 234,590 463,752
Payable to Staff 1,715,578 1,768,492 1,715,578 1,768,492
Total 53,620,533 107,111,152 48,481,990 103,465,119
Other Current Liabilities Group Shivam Cements
Particulars 15th July, 2024 16th July, 2023 15th July, 2024 16th July, 2023
(Ashad 31, 2081)  (Ashad 31, 2080) (Ashad 31, 2081) (Ashad 31, 2080)
Provision for Expenses 2,403,611 12,188,007 2,381,786 11,803,810
Advance From Customers
From Related Parties 36,570 36,570 36,570 36,570
From Others 206,553,311 200,247,727 183,783,158 195,534,243
Statutory Dues
TDS Payable 46,726,522 42,208,385 46,197,749 41,984,038
VAT Payable - 29,753,174 - 29,753,174
Excise payable 9,139,766 14,305,280 9,139,766 14,205,280
Royalty payable 52,841,168 49,644,567 52,661,168 49,644,567
CIT Payable 3,498,280 3,850,315 3,498,280 3,860,315
Provident Fund Payable 447,055 885,940 447,055 BB3,
Audit Fee Payable 1,955,800 1,628,825 985,000 985,
Other Liabilities
Cerlification Fee Payable - 11,150 -
Fayable Against Letter of Credit 156,581,993 156,581,993
Payable Against Land Purchase 4,691,000 100,000 100,000 100,000
Dividend Payable 16,472,322 25,201,322 16472322 25,201,322
Total 501,347,398 380,071,267 472,284,847 374,094,265
Income Tax (Assets)/Liabilities {Net} Group Shivam Cements
Pateiouliis 15th July, 2024 16th July, 2023 15th July, 2024 16th July, 2023
(Ashad 31,2081)  (Ashad 31, 2080) (Ashad 31,2081) (Ashad 31, 2080)
Income Tax Liabilities 5,028,374 21,702,514 2,051,476 21,702,514
Income Tax Assets (24,736,284) (19,606,763) (17.448,370) (17,234,244)
Total (19,707,910) 2,095,749 (15,396,894) 4,468,270
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Shivam Cements Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Year Ended Ashadh 31, 2081 (July 15, 2024)

Revenue From Operations Group Shivam Cements
Particulars 2080 1 2081 207912080 20801 2081 2079 1 2080
Revenue From Cement Sales 7.682,683,867  7,670,063,143 7,682,683,867  7,670,065,143
Revenue From Clinker Sales = 60,066,055 - 60,066,055.00
Revenue From Limestone Sales 1,122,238 - =
Other Operating Income
Revenue From Trading Sales 16,765,407 11,784,460 16,765,407 11,784,460
Revenue From Scrap Sales 4,611,475 10,727,530 4,611,475 10,727,530
Investment Income =
Financial Income 32,118,874 13,015,156 -
Total 7,737,301,861  7,765,658,344 7,704,060,749  7,752,643,188
Cost of Sales Group Shivam Cements
Particulars 20801 2081 20791 2080 2080 1 2081 207912080
Raw Materials Consumed 3,013,977,330  2,564,315,044 3,013,977,330  2,564,315,044
Packing Materials Consumed 180,528,326 180,145,650 180,528,326 180,145,650
Cost of Trading Sales 15,382,625 10,465,070 15,382,625 10,465,070
Other Materials Consumed 178,640,499 211,120,402 178,640,499 211,120,402
Production Expenses (Notes- 27A) 3,334,523,628  3,275,153,327 3,319,621,347  3,271,5363,600
(+) Opening stock - FG 184,582,029 413,322,605 184,882,029 413,322,605
(+) Opening Stock - WIP 5,520,080 6,710,629 5,520,080 6,710,629
(-) Closing Stock - WIP (7,470,715) (5,520,080) (7,470,715) (5,520,080)
(-) Closing Stock - FG (238,131,904)  (184,882,029) (226,954,333)  (184,882,029)
Total 6,667,851,899  6,470,830,619 6,664,127,188  6,467,240,891
Production Expenses Group Shivam Cements
Particulars 20801 2081 207912080 20801 2081 207912080
Electricity/ Power & Fuel 2331,463,199  2,507,980,264 2,331,463,199  2,507,980,264
Excavator & Loader Charges 24,613,411 16,650,176 18,368,611 16,650,176
Generator Running Expenses 378,474,475 175,903,440 378,474,475 175,903,440
Mines Expenses 13,233,745 3,511,046 12,614,745 3,511,046
Diesel General & Heavy Equipment Fuel 160,526,553 146,381,789 158,063,401 146,381,789
Security Expenses 12,691,640 12,954,634 12,691,640 12,954,634
Depreciation Expenses 121,081,612 124,483,934 117,993,339 120,894,207
Repair & Maintainance | Block A & D 23,534,004 24,391,580 23,534,004 24,391,580
Salaries & Wages 236,321,893 223,582,321 235,004,837 223,582,321
Post Employment Benefit Costs
Gratuity Expenses 6,624,905 7,054,519 6,624,905 7,054,519
Providend Fund Expenses 6,624,905 7,054,519 6,624,905 7,054,519
Leave Encashment Expenses 7,051,079 9,356,480 7,051,079 9,356,480
Other Production Expenses 12,282,208 15,848,625 11,112,208 Wﬁ,‘&i—\
Total 3,334,523,628  3,275,153,327 3,319,621,347  3371,5635600
(=3 *ao
Other Income Group Shivam Cemr#sl ‘\(\\
Particulars 208012081 207912080 20801 2081 20
Interest Income from Bank 5,165471 224,958 5,165,471 '
Other Interest Income 3,697,777 1,109,960 3,697,777
Gain/ (Loss) on Sale of PPE 9,053,025 8,891,817 9,053,025 8,891,817
Dividend Income 148,285,432 314,605,800 148,285,432 314,605,800
Insurance Claim 26,151,288 26,514,571 26,151,288
Others 8,976,357 12,203,291 8,976,357
Foreign Exchange Gain/(Loss) 60,184 188,394 60,184 188,394
- Total | 201,389,534 363,738,790  , 201,389,534 363,738,790
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Shivam Cements Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Year Ended Ashadh 31, 2081 (July 15, 2024)

31 Administration Expenses Group Shivam Cements
Particulars 20801 2081 2079 12080 20801 2081 207912080

Administrative Salaries & Wages 56,382,418 55,740,345 54,588,133 53,265,918
Post Employment Benefit Costs

Gratuity Expenses 2,208,302 2,351,506 2,208,302 2,351,506

Providend Fund Expenses 2,208,302 2,351,506 2,208,302 2,351,506
Leave Encashment Expenses 2,350,360 3,118,827 2,350,360 3,118,827
Staff Welfare 4,314,238 5,739,947 4,314,238 3,739,947
Comprehensive Employee Profit Bonus - 14,006,643 - 14,006,643
Bank Charges 2,909,993 5,116,716 2,909,478 5,114,655
Depreciation Expenses on PPE 13,428,036 13,715,302 13,390,599 13,940,538
Amortisation on ROU Asset 6,404,410 - 6,404,410 =
Repair & Maintainance | Block B & C 5,813,284 5,336,057 5,613,284 5,336,057
Rates & Taxes 7,748,381 2,821,117 6,969,039 1,925,617
Registration & Renewable Charges 7,547,500 5,866,811 6,076,600 4,666,206
Office Rent Expenses 1,572,355 8,170,268 658,623 7,458,098
Audit Fee 1,760,800 1,442,650 950,000 950,000
Tax Audit Fee 189,300 189,950 50,000 50,000
Guest Entertainment Expenses 2,044,960 2,911,675 1,998,070 2,684,117
Guest House Expense 1,016,155 1,578,173 1,016,155 1,491,553
Foreign Exchange Gain/ (Loss) - = - -
Insurance Premium 27,167,532 27,562,415 27,158,868 27,559,595
Internet Expense 859,199 1,253,821 839,199 1,253,821
Legal and Consultancy Charges 13,319,662 6,789,068 10,289,512 4,060,868
Postage & Courier Expenses 154,907 189,444 154,777 189,444
Books and Periodicals
Printing & Stationery 480,190 453,075 434,463 382,985
Telephone Expenses 2,043,652 2,481,418 2,043,652 2,477,418
Donation 55,999 -
Travelling & Conveyance 31,570,682 30,688,073 31,563,182 30,651,597
Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR)

CSR Expenses 1,190,518 1,136,135 1,190,518 1,136,135

CSR Provision 5,134,484 6,575,918 2,876,408 6,575,918
Meeting Allowances 1,542,000 1,483,500 922,000 1,178,500
Provision for Trade Receivables 25,660,298 12,748,114 25,660,298 12,748,114
Others 15,356,336 11,455,561 11,460,852 10,304,930

Total B 242,434,255 233,274,054 226,519,321 223,170,511




Shivam Cements Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Year Ended Ashadh 31, 2081 (July 15, 2024)

32 Selling and Distribution Expenses Group Shivam Cements
Particulars 20801 2081 2079 1 2080 20801 2081 20791 2080
Salaries & Wages 54,140,573 52,764,898 54,140,573 52,764,898
Sales Incentive 2,860,143 12,194,750 2,860,143 12,194,750
Post Employment Benefit Costs
Gratuity Expenses 2,208,302 2,351,506 2,208,302 2,351,506
Providend Fund Expenses 2,208,302 2,351,506 2,208,302 2,351,506
Leave Encashment Expenses 2,350,360 3,118,827 2,350,360 3,118,827
Advertisement & Publicly Expenses 58,648 487 81,606,618 58,648,487 81,606,618
Carriage Outward 41,959,472 47,098,825 41,959,472 47,098,825
Sales Commission 494,813,639 471,222,392 494,813,639 471,222,392
Sales Promotion 21,153,349 5,567,024 21,153,349 5,567,024
Total 680,342,625 678,276,347 680,342,625 678,276,347
33 Finance Cost Group Shivam Cements
Particulars 2080 12081 207912080 2080 12081 20791 2080
Interest on Demand Loan 8,648,712 3407316 8,648,712 3,407,316
Interest on Overdraft Loan 37,284,961 91,618,113 37,284,961 91,618,113
Interest on Hire Purchase Loan 937,481 1,652,964 937,481 1,652,964
Interest on Other 2,825,624 * 2,825,624 -
Total 49,696,776 96,678,392 49,696,776 96,678,392
34 Income Tax Expense Group Shivam Cements
Particulars 20801 2081 207912080 208012081 2079 1 2080
Current Tax on Profit For The Year 5,028,374 21,702,514 2,051,476 21,702,514
Deferred Tax Expense(Income) recognised in PL 25,131,801 35,512,873 23,075,218 34,529,709
Deferred Tax Expense(Income) recognised in OCl 16,091,452 (5,582,976) 16,091,452 (5,582,976)
Income Tax Expense 46,251,627 51,632,411 41,218,146 50,649,247
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Shivam Cements Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Year Ended Ashadh 31, 2081 (July 15, 2024)

35 Fair Value Measurements
(i) Financial Instruments by Cateogory & Hierarchy
This section explains the judgements and estimates made in determining the Fair Values of the Financial Instruments that are measured at
Amortised Cost and at which Fair Values are disclosed in the Financial Statements. The Company doesn't have any Financial Instruments
which are to be measured at Fair Value through Profit & Loss or Fair Value through Other Comprehensive Income.

To provide an indication about the reliability of the inputs used in determining Fair Value, the Company has classified its financial instruments
into Three Levels prescribed as per applicable NFRS. However, all the Financial Instruments held by the Company fall under Level 3 Category.

Level 1: Level 1 Hierarchy includes Financial Instruments measured using Quoted Prices.

Level 2: Fair Value of Financial Instruments that are not traded in an active market is determined using valuation techniques which maximises
the use of observable market data and rely as little as possible on entity-specific estimates. If all significant inputs required to determine Fair
Value of an instrument are observable, the instrument is included in Level 2.

Level 3: If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on observable market data, the instrument is included in Level 3.
There is no transfer of Financial Instruments between different levels as mentioned above during the year.

36 Financial Risk Management
The Company's activities expose it to Credit Risk, Liquidity Risk & Market Risk.
i} Credit Risk
The Company is exposed to credit risk for various Financial Instruments, For Example Customer Receivables, Loans or Advances given. The
Company continuously monitors Receivables and defaults with customers & other counterparties.

Credit Risk with respect to Trade Receivable is managed by the Company through setting up Credit Limits for customers & also periodically
reviewing the Credit worthiness of major customers.

Impairment for Trade Receivables:

15th July, 2024 16th July, 2023

Particulars (Ashad 31,2081)  (Ashad 31, 2080)
Gross Carrying Amount 1,179,967 882 1,450,605,621
Impairement Losses (53,323,072) (27,662,774)
Carrying Amount of Trade Receivables 1,126,644,809 1,422,942,847

The credit risk for cash & cash equivalents is considered negligible, since the counterparties are Nepal Rastra Bank approved Financial

ii) Liquidity Risk
Prudent Liguidity Management implies maintaining sufficient cash and marketable sccurities and the availablity of funding through an
adequate amount of internal and external financing to meet obligations when due. The Company monitors its risk to a shortage of funds on a

regular basis through cash forecast for scheduled debts servicing payments and considering maturity profiles of Financial Assels er
Financial Liabilities. / S
TN
=]
7 15 \2
a) Financing Arrangements: : | L 9

q & i
The Company had availed Financing Arrangements as categorised below. Closing balances of the same stands as follows:: -\ o £
Ox B A

15th July, 2024 16th July,

Particulars (Ashad 31,2081)  (Ashad 31,2080)
‘Short Term Borrowings 68,499,786 365,105,430
Long Term Borrowings 4,710,093 7,856,771
Total Borrowings 73,209,880 372,962,201

U'T
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Shivam Cements Limited
Notes to the Financial Statemenls
For the Year Ended Ashadh 31, 2081 (July 15, 2024)

b) Maturity of Financial Liabilities: )
The table below summarises the Company's Financial Liabilities into Relevant Maturity Groupings based on their Contractual Maturities for

15th July, 2024 16th July, 2023
(Ashad 31, 2081) (Ashad 31, 2080)
Particulars <1 Year >1 Year <1 Year >1 Year
Trade Payables 1,710,448,293 1,582,336,199
Borrowings 68,499,786 4,710,093 365,105,430 7,856,771
Other Financial Liabilities 48,481,990 103,465,119
Total Financial Liabilities 1,827,430,069 4,710,093 2,050,906,748 7,856,771
iii) Market Risk
a) Interest Rate Risk

Interest Rate Risk is the risk that the Fair Value or Future Cash Flows of a Financial Instrument will fluctuate because of changes in Market
Rates, The Company's policy is to minimise Interest Rate Cash Flow risk exposure on borrowings.

b) Interest Rate Sensitivity

Profit or Loss is Sensitive to changes in Interest Rate for Borrowings. A change in Market Interest Level by 100 Basis Points which is reasonably
possible based on Management's Assessment would have the following effect on the Profit After Tax.

15thJuly, 2024 16th July, 2023

Particul
sy (Ashad 31,2081)  (Ashad 31, 2080)
Interest Rate - Increase By 100 Basis Points* 2,230,860 8,418,347
Interest Rate - Decrease By 100 Basis Points* (2,230,860) (8,418,347)

* Holding all other Variable Constant

37 Capital Management
The Company has Equity Share Capital & Reserves as the source of capital. The primary objective of the Company's capital management is to
maximize the shareholder value & provide adequate return to shareholders.
To maintain or adjust the Capital Structure, the company may adjust the dividend payment to shareholders or Issue New Shares for further
capital infusion.

The board of directors on 2084 - 08 -27 has proposed to declare 0.45% Cash Dividend and 8.55% bonus share on paid up capital. The said
amount shall be payable after the approval of annual general meeting. This dividend is declared after the balance sheet date but before the
financial statements are authorised for issue, and thus not recognised as liability at the balance sheet date as per the Nepal Accounting

Standard - 10. I. @
h



34 Related Party Disclosure
Subsidiaries

Other Relaled Entilies

Key Managerial Personnel

Shivam Cements Limited
For the Year Ended Ashadh 31, 2081 (July 15, 2024)

Notes Lo the Financial Statements

1) Shivam Holdings Pvt. Ltd,™

2) S.C.L. Investment Py Lid.

3) Shivam Readymix Concrete Pyt Lid.

4} Arun Valley Mines & Minerals Products Pve. Lid,
5) Dantakali Cements Pyt Lid,

6) Dhankuta Mines and Minerals Products Pyt Ltd.
7) Koshi Lime Pvt. Ltd.

B) Orient Minerals Pyt LEd.

9) Pathivara Limestone Udhyog Pvt. Lid.

10) Purbanchal Minerals Company Pyl Lid.

11) Salbote Khanij Udhyog Pvt. Lid.

12) Dantakali Quarries Pvt. Lid.

1) Arvind Emporium Pyt Lid.

2) Construction Solution Pyt Lid.

3) Hongshi Shivam Cement Pyt. Ltd.
4) Laxmi Lime Products

5) Medern Infrastructure Pvi. Lid.
&) Pashupati Synpack Ind. Pvt. Lid.

Chairman - Gaurav Goel
Director - Raghu Nandan Maru
Director - Gaurav Sharda
Director - Shailaja Rai
Director - Shi

i Dhakal

Head (Production) - Nawal Kishore Chaudbary [Till 27|01 2081]

13) Laxmi Corporated Pyl Lid.

18} Century Holdings Pvt Ltd.

15) Bagmati Cement Udhyog Pvt. Ltd.

16) Sagarmatha Minerals Pvt Lid.

17) Shivam Infrastructures Pyt Lid.

18) Shivam Management Pyt Ltd.

19) Shivam Laminates Pvi Ltd.

20) Star Lime Industries Pyl Ltd.

21) Global Cement Pvt, Ltd.

22) Shivam Banaspati Tatha Krishi Farm Pyt Ltd.

7) Saptakoshi Cement Pvi Ltd.
8) Techno Jaya Jewellery Pvt. Ltd.
9) Laxmi Technoplast Pvt. Ld.
10} Dhading Cement Pvt. Ltd.

CFO - Jyoli Thapa

Company Secretary & Head (Legal/ Admin) - Lekh Nath Aryal
Head (Mines) - Ramji Prasad Chaurasia

Head (Quality/Lab) - Arjun Shamsher Rana [Till 31|03 | 2081]
Head {Sales & Marketing) - Nikhil Agrawal

E.D. - Shuguang Liv

(a} Key Pe 1 Comp 4
Group Shivam Cements
15th July, 2024 16th July, 2023 15th July, 2024 16th July, 2023
(Ashad 31, 2081) (Ashad 31,2080) (Ashad 31, 2081) (Ashad 31, 2060)
Short Term Employes Benefits 60,194,674 54.030,35 58,400,358 54,030,345
60,194,674 54,030,345 58,400,398 34,030,345
(b) Related Party Transachions:
Group Shivam Cements
i Other Related Key Managerial y P Other Related  Key Managerial
- Radicylass Entities Personnel Totil Subsidiaries Entities Personnel Tomt
Sales
For The Year Ended 15th July, 2024 {Ashad 31, 2081) 2,285,408 - 2,285,408 2,285408 2,285,408
or The Year Ended 16th July, 2023 {Ashad 31, 2080} 35,053,469 - 35,053,469 35,053,469 - 35,053, 469
Purchases
For The Year Ended 15th July, 2024 (Ashad 31, 2081) 2,542,831,825 - 2,542,831,825 - 2,542,831,825 2,542,831.825
For The Year Ended 16th July, 2023 {Ashad 31, 2080} 1,821,496,745 - 1,B21,496,745 - 1.821,496,745 1.821,496,715
{c) Related Party Balances
Group Shivam Cements
4 Other Related Key Managerial P Other Related  Key Managerial
Particulars Entities Personnel Total Subsidiaries Entities L nel Tatal
Trade Receivables
As at 15th July, 2024 (Ashad 31, 2081) - - - 27,028,479 - - 27028479
As at 16th July, 2023 (Ashad 31, 2080) 4,516,282 - 4,516,282 - 4,516,252 - 4,510,282
Customer Advance
As at 15th July, 2024 (Ashad 31, 2081) 36,570 " - 36,570 - 36,570 36,570
As at 16th July, 2023 (Ashad 31, 2050} 36,570 - 36,570 - 36,570 - 36,570
Share Application Muney
As at 15th July, 2024 (Ashad 31, 2081} - - - - u s
As at 16th July, 2023 (Ashad 31, 2080} - - 11,287,170 11,287,170
Trade Payables
As at 15th July, 2024 (Ashad 31, 2081) 134,257,529 134,257 529 134,257,529 - 134,257,529
As at 16th July, 2023 (Ashad 31, 2080) 66,373,887 66,373,887 - 66,373,887 - 66,373,887
Advance to Suppliers £
As at 15th July, 2024 (Ashad 31, 2081) 12,001,514 - 12,001,514 17,303,777 12,001, 34 29,325,291
As at 16th July, 2023 {Ashad 31, 2080) 4,154,585 - 4,154,385 12,013,514 16, 168,099

Advance for Share Purchase
As at 15th July, 2024 {Ashad 31, 2081)
As at T6th July, 2023 (Ashad 31, 2080y

Y\

4,194,585

65,041,257



Shivam Cements Limited
For the Year Ended Ashadh 31, 2081 (July 15, 2024)
Notes to the Financial Statements

39 Legal Matters & Contingent Liabilities

391 Claims against the Company Not Acknowledged as Debts -

Group Shivam
Paittoliss 15th July, 2024 16th July, 2023 15th July, 2024 16th July, 2023
{Ashad 31, 2081}  (Ashad 31, 2060) (Ashad 31, 2081)  (Ashad 31, 2080)
Claims against the Company not acknowledged as debts:
For Income Tax/ VAT / Excise* 48,812,388 44,870,171 48,812,388 44,870,171

* Note:

1. Company has not acknowledged the above stated claim as debts for Income Tax, VAT & Excise as the company has applied for amendment of the
assessment order so issued for the same at respective legal forums for Fiscal Year 2067 | 68 - 2068 | 69, 2070| 71 - 2071 |72, 2074 |75 - 2075 | 76 & 2076 | 77
(Jeopardy Assessment).

2. Management believes that chances of these matters going against the company are remote and there will not be any probable cash outflow.

39.2 Claims against the Company - Nepal Electricity Authority
Company has not ascertained/quantified the financial impact of Interest & Penalty so arising against an ongoing legal proceedings (Currently under
consideration at Honorable Supreme Court) between Shivam Cement Limited & Nepal Electricity Authority for Electricity Overhilling issues as on the
reporting period. But at the same time the entity has also identified & accounted the applicable relevant expenses for the same, impact of which is duly
reflected in the profitability of respective fiscal years.

Group Shivam
Puriicaliss 15th July, 2024 16th July, 2023 15th July, 2024 16th July, 2023
(Ashad 31, 2081)  (Ashad 31, 2080) (Ashad 31, 2081)  (Ashad 31, 2080)
Amount Payable to NEA
For Electricity Over Billing Issues® 1,276,136,932 1,276,136,932 1,276,136,932 1,276,136,932

39,3 Other Claims

A complaint has been filed in Kathmandu District Court for recovery of money against some distributors regarding non-payment of fund on time by
such organizations,

WRIT Application has been filed at Honorable Supreme Court regarding the provision of 0.25 percent sales tax on the sale of cement under Finance Act
b. 2077 & 078 of the Bagmati Province Government, which is in conflict with the Constitution and the federal law.

¢. Noinformation has been received that any case has been filed against any director of the company for committing financial crimes.

40 Corporate Social Responsibility
Provision for Corporate Social Responsibility, as required under the provision of Industrial Enterprise Act, 2076 Sec: 54 has been created.

41 Earnings Per Share Group Shivam

——— 15th July, 2024 16th July, 2023 15th July, 2024 16th July, 2023
(Ashad 31,2081) _(Ashad 31, 2080) (Ashad 31, 2081)  (Ashad 31, 2080)

Profit For the Year 378,918,495 572,422,336 259,637,678 594,783,614
Weighted average number of shares outstanding for Basic EPS 47,195,123 44,000,000 47,195,123 44,000,000
Weighted average ber of st outstanding for Diluted EP'S 54,568,085 50,270,000 54,568,085 50,270,000
Nominal Value of Equity Shares 100 100 100 100
Basic Earning per share (EPS) NRs. 8.03 13.01 550 13.52
Diluted Eaming per share (EPS) NRs. 6.94 ~A1.39 4.76 11.83

42 Assets Pledged
Entity has pledged its Property, Plant & Equipment, Trading Assels i.e. Receivables & Inventory to collateralize its Interest Bearing Borrowings.

43 Regrouping of Figures:
Previous Year's figures have been regrouped, rearranged as and where necessary.

44 Miscellaneous:
(i) All amounts are in Nepalese Rupees unless otherwise stated. .
(ii) All figures are in the Nearest Rupee & Rounded off.
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We are only manufacturer of Ordinay Portland Cement (OPC) and had

¢ . beenawarded yvi’rh "NS Qt{ality Award -2019" for our performance on
J‘ Quality production of NS marked OPC cement.
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Shivam Cements Litd. is delighted 1o collaborste with
Nepal Energy EfMiclency Programme

A propect under German Financial Cooperation for the promotion of
Energy Effickency
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Shivam offers a value-added service at no exira cost: on-site
technical support provided by our expert feam and a
well-equipped technical van. This service ensures quality and
consistency in concrete during construction. The van is fully
equipped with the necessary testing facilities and equipment
fo test raw materials, providing expert advice on the best
methods for producing quality concrete. We also provide
guidance on optimal concrete mix proporfions (cement,
sand, coarse aggregate, and water) to achieve cost-effec-
fiveness without compromising strength and durability.
Additionally, we provide the following on-site fests:

If customers face any problem while using Shivam
products, our Technical Support Engineers are just a

call away. They assist the customers to
resolve the problems quickly and efficiently.
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SHIVAM CEMENTS LTD.

Registered Office/Factory: Hatauda-16, Hativa, Makwanpur Tel: +877-57-530461
Corporate Office: Siddhartha Insurance Bhawan, 2nd Floor Anamnagar, Kathmandu
GPO Box 13478, Tal +977-1-5705003/5706804, Fax: +977-1-5706854
Hetauda Regional Office: Parjatpath, Campus Road, Hetauda-4, Makwanpur, Tel: +877-057-523141
Itahari Regional Office: Aaabare Line-4, Kahan, Tel; +877-9801119861
Pokhara Regional OHice: The Pokhara Mall, Prithivi Chowk, Pokhara, Tel; 977-061-540714
MNaryanghat Regional Office: Hakimchowk, Bharatpur, Tel: +977-9801119896
Lahan Regional Office: Saraswalitol6, Lahan Tel: +977-033-560660
Janakpur Regional Office: Banshi Chowk, Janakpur Tel +877- 9801850827
Wabsife: wwwshivomcemenl.coming, Emall; info@shivamecemeant.com
Fcebook: wwwincebaok.com/ShivamCemeant



